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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventeenth (17") Annual General Meeting of the Members
of “IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED” (IIDL) will be held on Thursday, the

19" Day of September, 2024 at 11 :30 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at IFCI
Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements and Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, along with
Board’s Report, Independent Auditors’ Report and comments of the Comptroller &
Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Shri Venugopal K Nair (DIN: 06783512) who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

3. To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of
Section 139(5) and Section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to pass the following
resolution with or without modification(s) as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5) and
Section 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force) the Audit Committee/Board of Directors of
the Company, be and is hereby, authorized to decide and fix the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company appointed
by Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) for the Financial
Year 2024-25, as may be deemed fit.”



SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants, appointed by the Board
of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the costrecords of
the Company for the financial year 2024-25, be paid the remuneration
of Rs. 25000/- inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses, plus applicable
taxes.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company
be and is hereby, authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and
take all such steps as may be necessary or expedient to give effect to
this resolution.”

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 152, 160 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Shri Rajeev Kumar (DIN:
01879049 ), who was appointed as an Additional Director with effect from
August 14,2024 interms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
whose term of office expires at the Annual General Meeting and in respect
of whom the Company has received a notice in writing proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby, appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of the Company whose office will be liable to retire by
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Managing Director and/or Company Secretary
and/or Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and is hereby, severally
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as
may be necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Registered Office: By order of the Board of Directors
IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place,

New Delhi-110019 For IFCI Infrastructure
CIN: 11540001 2007GQI169232 Development Limited

Tel.: +91-11-41732000
Fax: +91-11-26487059

Website: www.iidlindia.com Sd/-
Pooja Vanjani

Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Dated : September 05, 2024



NOTES:

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE PROXY FORM, IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE,
MUST BE DEPOSITED TO THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN
FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING, DULY
COMPLETED AND SIGNED.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50)
AND HOLDING IN AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE
THAN 10 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY, SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR
ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

. Proxy holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting. A Proxy Form which
does not state the name of the Proxy shall be considered invalid.

. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution
authorising their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the Annual General
Meeting.

. The Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
special business set out in the Notice is annexed hereto.

. The Register of Contracts or Arrangement in which Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the meeting.

. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement as
well as the other documents as required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days except
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays during normal business hours up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting. The Registers required to be maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act,
2013, will be available for Inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of
the company are requested to address their queries in writing to the company before the
meeting, preferably at least seven days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, so as to
enable the management to keep the information ready.

. Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report, Notice and Attendance
Slip/proxy form duly completed and signed at the meeting.



Details of the Director seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting in pursuance of Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings

Shri Venugopal K Nair

Shri Venugopal K Nair (DIN: 06783512) aged 72 Years is Director General of Police - Retired
with vast experience in the field of Policing and Administration that included Law & order,
Security, Vigilance. He also has exposure to Industry having worked as Managing Director of
the Kerala State Civil Supplies Corporation and the State Shipping and Inland Navigation
Corporation. His stint in Delhi as Director Vigilance in Steel Authority provided him with deep
insight into Corporate Governance and Corporate Compliances with a better understanding of
corporate malfeasance. At present, he is serving as an Independent External Monitor (IEM) with
National Aluminium Company Limited (NALCO), Bhubaneswar, NTPC Limited and ITI
Bangalore (GOIl). He was earlier [EM with Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Ltd (RINL), Vizag and also
Director of Malabar Cements & Kerala Minerals & Metals Ltd. (Govt. of Kerala). Prior to this, he
served Reliance Industries Limited as Advisor Corporate Affairs and Advisor and Consultant to
L&T on Kochi Metro Project (KMRL). He had served Kerala Police Administration at various
levels from 1980 to 2012. He is MSc. (Fibre Science & Technology) and has a Post Graduate
Diploma (Textile Technology) from the University of Leeds, UK.

Shri Venugopal K Nair was appointed on the Board of 1IDL on August 25, 2018, as Non-
Executive Director. He has attended all 4 (Four) meetings of the Board of Directors held
during the FY 2023-24. Further, he is chairman/ member on the following Committees of
|IDL: '

o Audit Committee (Chairman)
e Asset Sale Committee (Member)
e Risk Management Committee (Member)

None of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the re-appointment of Shri Venugopal
K Nair on the Board of the Company.

He does not hold any share in IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Explanatory Statement pur t ti 02 (1) of th m ies Act, 2013

ITEMNO. 4

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to appoint a Cost
Auditor to audit the cost records of the Company. Further, in accordance with Rule 14 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by shareholders of the Company.

Further for the Financial year 2024-25, M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants has
been re-appointed by the Board in its Meeting held on July 31,2024 on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee as the cost auditor of the company on the same
remuneration i.e., Rs. 25,000/- inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses plus applicable taxes
and the proposal for ratification of the remuneration for FY 2024-25 is placed at Item No.
04 of the Notice.

The resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice is accordingly recommended for the
shareholders’ approval by way of Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or
interested in this Iltem/ Resolution.

ITEMNO. 5

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
has approved appointment of Shri Rajeev Kumar as an Additional Director on the Board

of IIDL w.e.f. August 14, 2024, for holding an office of Director up to the date of ensuing

Annual General Meeting.

Brief Profile of Shri Rajeev Kumar is stated below:

Name Shri Rajeev Kumar

DIN 01879049

Date of Birth 08/12/1962

Qualification B. Tech and MBA Finance

Expertise He is an experienced banker, with 30

plus years of experience in Banking,
Corporate Finance and Investment
Banking. He retired as Executive
Director of IDBI Bank and during his
tenure has held multiple Board
positions and Senior Management
Committee positions. In addition, he
has served as an Independent
Director on the Board of various

b



companies and advised on strategic
and fundraising to  multiple
corporations.

Date of appointment August 14, 2024

Relationship with other directors | None

and Key Managerial Personnel of
the company

Shareholding in the Company Not Applicable

Directorships in other Companies 1. SatiaIndustries Limited
Chairmanship/ Membership of the | Nil

Committees of the other Boards

Number of Board Meetings (from | None
the date of appointment)

The Company has received a notice pursuant to Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013
proposing his candidature for the office Director of the Company and Nomination and
Remuneration Committee has recommended his appointment as Non-Executive Director
whose office will be liable to retire by rotation on the Board of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommended the resolution for appointment of Shri
Rajeev Kumar as Non-Executive Director liable to retire by rotation to the shareholders for their

approval by way of Ordinary Resolution

Documents related to the appointment of Shri Rajeev Kumar shall be made available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours up to the
date of AGM.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, except
Shri Rajeev Kuar being appointee, is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this

resolution.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2007G0O1169232
Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
Tel: +91 11 41732000, Fax: +91 11 26487059
Website: www.iidlindia.com
Emailid: cs@iidlindia.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Please complete the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
venue
DP.Id. * Folio No. *
Client|Id.

I hereby record my presence at the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 19" September 2024 at 11:30 A.M. at IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New

Delhi-110019.
NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER .......urveenens

NAME OF PROXY#

“To be filled in case proxy attends instead of shareholder
SIGNATURE OF THE SHAREHOLDER/PROXY*

*Strike out whichever is not applicable
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Registered Office: IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019
Tel: +91 11 41732000 Fax: +91 11 26487059
Website: www.iidlindia.com
Email id: cs@iidlindia.com

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Name of the Company: IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
Registered Office: IFC| Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019.

Name of Member (s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID:
Folio No./Client Id:
DP ID.

I/We, being the member (s) of shares of the above-named Company, hereby
appoint:

1. Name:
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

2. Name:
Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature: , or failing him/her

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 17th Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 19" September 2024 at 11 :30
A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company, at IFCI| Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi-
110019 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below:



Resolution
No.

Resolution Matter

Type of
Resolution

For Against

Ordinary Business

1.

Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited
Financial Statements and Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2024, along with
Board’s Report, Independent Auditors’
Report, and comments of the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India thereon.

Ordinary

To appoint adirectorin place of Shri VK Nair
(DIN: 06783512) who retires by rotation at
this Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Ordinary

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors
of the company.

Ordinary

Special Businesses

4,

To ratify the remuneration of Cost Auditor
for the FY 2024-25

Ordinary

Regularization of appointment of Shri
Rajeev Kumar as Director (Non- Executive)
liable to retire by rotation.

Ordinary

Signed this day of , 2024

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

meeting.
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BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

The Board of Directors of your Company has the pleasure of presenting the 17" Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended

March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:
The Ind-AS Financial Results of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 are summarized

below:

(Rs. in Crore)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
Financial Financial Financial Financial
Year Year Year Year
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Income from operations 17.83 20.67 20.56 23.40
Other income 21.14 19.74 21.46 19.88
Total income (1) 38.97 40.41 42.02 43.28
Cost of Sales 3.17 4.05 3.17 4.05
Finance Cost 0.00 0.001 0.06 0.08
Employees benefit expense 6.08 5.92 6.16 5.99
Other expenses 13.12 9.54 13.51 9.95
Depreciation 3.08 3.82 3.21 3.97
Total Expenditure (i) 25.45 23.33 26.11 24.04
Profit before tax (I-1) 13.53 17.09 15.91 19.24
Exceptional items 0.00 -0.63 0.00 -0.63
Profit before Tax 13.53 16.46 15.90 18.61
Less: Provision for Taxation 3.54 0.33 4.55 1.17
Profit After Tax 9.99 16.13 11.35 17.44

The total income of your Company for the Financial Year (FY) 2023-24 was Rs. 38.97 Crores
as against the total income of Rs. 40.41 Crores. Likewise, total expenditure for the FY 2023-
24 was Rs.25.45 Crores as against the total expenditure of Rs. 23.33 Crores in the FY 2022- 23
on standalone basis.

The Company has earned PAT of Rs. 9.99 Crores in the FY 2023- 24 as against 16.13 Crore in
the FY 2023-24. Your Directors are continuously looking for avenues for future growth of the
Company.
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2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL) was set up by IFCI Limited in the year 2007
to venture into the real estate and infrastructure sector. The Company, since its inception
has undertaken projects as a Developer/ Project Management Consultant (PMC) viz.
Development of residential projects at Uttar Pradesh & Kerala, Development and running
of Serviced Apartments; PMC services for construction of the campus of “Management
Development Institute” at Murshidabad, West Bengal; “IFCI Bhawan” the office
complexes at Bengaluru & Ahmedabad; Furnishing the branches of erstwhile “Bharatiya
Mabhila Bank” at New Delhi, Ahmedabad, Guwahati, Kolkata, Bangalore and Chennai.

IIDL owns the Serviced Apartments situated at Mayur Vihar, New Delhi. This is Gold
Standard property with 92 luxurious Serviced Apartments comprising studio, one bedroom
& two-bedroom apartments. It offers an ideal living environment that will impress even the
most tech-savvy guests. The property is being run by 1IDL under the name IIDL Suites.

On the residential front, IIDL has successfully developed two projects viz. 215t Milestones
Residency, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh and IIDL Aerie at Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Kerala.
Projects are complete and handed over to respective Resident Welfare Associations/

Owners Apartments Association.

lIDL is developing a prestigious Financial City Project spread over an area of 50 acres near
Bengaluru International Airport, Karnataka. IIDL has developed the common infrastructure
for the said project and has sub-leased the plots to various Banks/Institutions for

development.

[IDL owns properties at various locations of the country such as Delhi, Kolkata, Ghaziabad,
Pondicherry etc. Some of which have been let out & some have been earmarked for
development/sale at a future date. Some of the properties with legal issues are being dealt

appropriately.

A subsidiary of your Company viz. IIDL Realtors Private Limited (IRPL) is also having a
commercial property situated at Naman Centre, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai.

Your Company is making effort to monetize best value from its properties, also efforts are
being made for optimizing performance of hospitality division by providing state of art
facilities.

3.DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend dividend for the financial year 2023-24. However,
dividend of Rs.0.585 (i.e. @ 5.85%) for the year ended 31 March, 2023 on each fully paid
42,70,99,243 equity shares of Rs.10/- each of the company amounting to Rs.24,98,53,057/-
was paid during the year.
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4.CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND CHANGES THEREIN, IF ANY

The Company has one class of equity shares of par value at Rs. 10. The Authorized Share
Capital is Rs. 1000 Cr. divided in 100 Cr shares at Rs. 10 each. The issued, subscribed and
paid-up capital is Rs. 427.09 Cr. as at March 31, 2024.

5.TRANSFER TO RESERVES

An amount of Rs. 9,99,33,816/- was transferred to the reserves during the period under
review.

6. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under
review within the meaning of Section 73 and section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS & MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the reporting period.
Further, there have been no material changes and commitments which affect the
financial position between the end of financial year and date of Board’s Report.

8. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

The following changes have occurred in the composition of the Board of Directors and in
KMP since the last Board Report:

Consequent upon nomination by IFCI Limited, Shri Amrendra Kumar was appointed as Nominee
Director designated as Managing Director in place of Shri Vijay Kumar Deshraj w.e.f. January 18
,2024. Shri Rahul Bhave was Nominated as Director by IFCI Limited w.e.f. December 26, 2023.

Mr. Venu Gopal Kuttappan Nair whose office of director is liable to retire by rotation at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for
re-appointment.

Shri Vishal Pandey has resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. May 26, 2023. Ms.
Nidhi Agarwal has joined as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f. July 13, 2023.

Ms. Tannu Sharma has resigned from the post of Company Secretary of the Company and
relieved on 15th September 2023. Ms. Meenakshi Mittal has resigned from the post of
Company Secretary of the Company and relieved on 15th March 2024. Further, Ms. Pooja
Vanjani has joined as Company Secretary w.e.f. 26th March 2024.
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9. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement of section 134 (3) (c) of Companies Act 2013 with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

a) That in preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) That the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give true and fair view of state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial
year and of the profit & loss of the Company for that period;

c) That the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d} That the directors have prepared annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) That the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

10. ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return is available at
https://iidlindia.com/D3D6AD16-46DE-4897-8566-D7C2533E1D6D/CMS/Page/Annual-

Report

11. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013, were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arm’s length basis. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with
related parties are disclosed in the relevant notes of Financial Statements and mentioned in
Form AOC-2 enclosed as Annexure-A and forms part of this Annual Report.

12, BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly results and other items on
the agenda. Additional meetings are held as and when necessary. The Committees of the
Board wusually meet whenever the need arises for transacting business. The
recommendations of the Committees are placed before the Board for necessary approval.
Four Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2023- 24. These were held on
May 15, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and January 31, 2024. The gap
between two Board meetings was in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 read with

rules made thereunder.



The composition of the Board of Directors during the FY 2023-24 was as below:

Name of the Directors AGM Board Board
Attended | Meetings held | Meetings
during the attended
tenure
Sh. Manoj Mittal (Non-Executive Chairman) Yes 4 3
Sh. Rahul Bhave ( Nominee Director w.e.f. 26 December, 2023) No 1 1
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra No 4 3
Dr. Sumita Rai Yes 4 4
Sh. Venugopal K Nair Yes 4 4
Sh. Vijay Kumar Tyagi Yes 4 4
Sh Amrendra Kumar ( Managing Director w.e.f. 18 January, No 1 1
2024)
Sh. Vijay Kumar Deshraj (Managing Director up to 18 January, Yes 3 3
2024)
Sh. Debashis Gupta { up to 20 December, 2023) Yes 3 3

13. BOARD’S COMMITTEE MEETINGS

13.1. Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set out in Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide an
effective supervision of the Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate
and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of
financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting
process by the Management, Internal Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Cost Auditors and
notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. Four meetings of the
Committee were held during the Financial Year 2023-24. These were held on May 15, 2023,
August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and January 31, 2024. Further, there have been no
instances where the Board has not accepted the recommendations by Audit Committee.
Further, Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee. The composition of
Audit Committee of Directors during the FY 2023-24 was as under: -

Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings

during the tenure attended
Sh. Venugopal K Nair (Chairman) 4 4
Dr. Sumita Rai 4 4
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra 4 2
Sh. Rahul Bhave { w.e.f. 26.12.2023) 1 1

13.2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors discharges the functions of
identifying the suitable persons who are qualified to become Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel, senior management and recommending their appointment, remuneration etc.
Four meetings of the Committee were held during the FY 2023- 24. These were held on
May 15, 2023, August 08, 2023, November 02, 2023, and January 31, 2024. The
composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the FY 2023- 24 was as

under:
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Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings

| __ during the tenure attended
Dr. Sumita Rai (Chairperson) 4 4
Shri Sachikanta Mishra 4 2
Shri Vijay Kumar Tyagi ( w.e.f. December 20, 2023) 1 1
Shri Debashis Gupta ( up to December 20, 2023) 3 3

13.3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In terms of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee to monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
of the Company, and the activities included in the policy. One meeting of the CSR
Committee was held on August 08, 2023, during the financial year 2023-24. The
composition of Committee of Directors during the FY 2023- 24 was as under:

Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings

during the tenure attended
Dr. Sumita Rai 1 1
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra 1 0
Sh. Vijay Kumar Deshraj ( up to January 18 , 2024) 1 1

13.4. Asset Sale Committee

The Board has constituted Asset Sale Committee to consider the proposals of sale, disposal
of properties and submit its recommendation to the Board. One meeting of the Committee
was held on January 31, 2024, during the financial year 2023- 24. The composition of

Committee of Directors during the FY 2023- 24 was as under:

Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings

during the tenure attended
Sh. Rahul Bhave { Chairman) w.e.f. January 31, 2024) 0 0
Sh. Venugopal Nair 1 1
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra 1 1
Sh. Amrendra Kumar { w.e.f. January 18 , 2024) 1 1

13.5. Risk Management Committee

The Board constituted Risk Management Committee with a view to identify, evaluate and
give suggestions to mitigate all internal and external risks associated with the business of
the Company. One meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held on May 15, 2023,
during the financial year 2023- 24. The composition of Committee of Directors during the

FY 2023-24 was as under

- Name of the Member Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure attended
Sh. Sachikanta Mishra (Chairman) 1 1
Sh. Venugopal Nair 1 | 1
Sh. Vijay Kumar Deshraj { up to January 18, 2024) 1 1
_Sh. Amrendra Kumar ( w.e.f. January 18, 2024) 0 0




14. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

14.5.

14.6.

Statutory Auditors

C&AG has appointed M/s VPGS & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 507971C), as
Statutory Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023- 2024.

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report along with Notes on Accounts are self-explanatory and
therefore, do not call for any further comments or explanation.

Cost Auditors

M/s Sunny Chhabra & Co., Cost Accountants was appointed as the Cost Auditor of
the Company, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, for the Financial Year
2023-24 to carry out cost audit. Proposal for recommendation of the professional
fee of the Cost Auditor for the FY 2024-25 is being placed for the approval of the
shareholders.

Internal Auditors

M/s JKSS & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed as Internal Auditors of
IIDL including IIDL Suites (Serviced Apartments) respectively for the Financial Year

2023-24.

Secretarial Auditors

M/s Surya Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries was appointed as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Auditor has submitted their report, for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024, in Form MR-3, annexed as Annexure-B. The report does not
contain any adverse remark and observations.

15. COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

The Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India on the Standalone and

16.

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
along with compliance / management comments are annexed as Addendum-1.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to MCA notification dated June 5, 2015, in case of Government Companies,

Section 134(3) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013 shall not apply. Accordingly, the

requisite Policy has not been made part of Board’s Report.

1)



17.

18.

19.

20.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors formulates the CSR Policy
and recommends to the Board of Directors on activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

Further, the Disclosure of contents of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in the
Board’s Report pursuant to the provisions of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided as Annexure-C and the policy can be
accessed on the Company’s website at https://iidlindia.com/ED5B8377-98F8-4545-
B119-5DFF3AEA83A2/CMS/Page/Policy

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND
SECURITIES PROVIDED

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced loans, or provide guarantees
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same forms part of the notes to
the financial statements. However, during the year tax free bonds amounting to Rs. 20
Crore has matured and amount of Rs. 2.04 Crores has been recognised as net loss on equity
investments at fair value in case of Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate system of internal control through the process of
Internal Audit. Internal Audit was carried out during the year under report as per the
scope approved by the Audit Committee of the Company. The Accounts
Department/CFO monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control
systems in the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting
procedures and policies of the Company and its subsidiary. All the internal audit
reports along with corrective measures taken are regularly reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY AND ITS FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

IIDL Realtors Private Limited (IRPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of lIDL which is having
rental and interest income during the financial year 2023-24. In accordance with
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, consolidated financial statements have
been prepared for the Company and its subsidiary, which form part of this Report.
Further, the report on the performance and financlal position of the subsidlary of the
Company along with salient features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form
AOC-1is annexed to this report as Annexure-D.



21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated financial statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
have been provided in the Annual Report. These Consolidated Financial Statements
provide financial information about your Company and its subsidiary as a single
economic entity.

VIGIL MECHANISM

Section 177 (9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides for establishment of a
vigil mechanism in every listed company and such other class or classes of companies,
as may be prescribed for its directors and employees to report to the management
their concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The mechanism shall provide for adequate
safeguards against victimization of director(s)/employee(s) who avail the mechanism
and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases. However, this policy is an internal document of the Company and
has been framed for the purpose defined above. The Policy on vigil mechanism may be
accessed on the Company's website at https://iidlindia.com/ED5B8377-98F8-4545-
B119-5DFF3AEA83A2/CMS/Page/Policy

WWW. https://iidlindia.com/ED5B8377-98F8-4545-B119-

5DFF3AEA83A2/CMS/Page/Policyiidlindia.com.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place the Policy on Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace
and also formed an Internal Complaints Committee in compliance of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Further, during the year, no complaint was received and hence, no complaint was

pending with the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION AS PER RULE 5 OF COMPANIES
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014.

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from compliance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. IIDL, being a
Government Company, this information has not been included as a part of this Report.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding foreign exchange earnings
& outgo in regard to business operation of lIDL Suites, New Delhi are as under:



Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

(Rs. in Lakh)
Sl. Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS
No. March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Foreign Exchange
a.
Earned
Foreign Currency 1.84 1.07
Foreign Card 338.69 363.93
TOTAL 340.53 365.00
b Foreign Exchange
" | Outgo
Foreign Travel 0 0
Fee for Technical and
i 0 0
Professional
Travel_ ' Agent 0 0
Commission
Refund to Guest 0 0
Royalty 0 0
Promotion
TOTAL 0 0
c CIF value of imports ) i
" | (Other goods)

Further, details regarding conservation of energy and technology absorption as required
under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules prescribed thereunder are
not applicable to the Company.

26. RISK MANAGEMENT

IIDL has a Risk Management Committee which has formed a policy on Risk Management
framework and oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact
assessment, effective implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.

27. SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURT IMPACTING
THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

During the Financial Year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by
any regulator or Court impacting the going concern status of your Company and Company's
operations.
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28. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, none of the auditors have reported, under sub - section (12)
of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against
the company by its officers, employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned

in the Board’s Report.

29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India.

30. EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

The Company continued to maintain harmonious and cordial relations with its employees in
all divisions, which enabled it to achieve this performance level on all fronts.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to express their appreciation to IFCI Limited (Holding Company) for
its continuous support and valuable guidance. The Directors also take this opportunity to
thank Government of India and other Government Authorities, Banks and other business

associates for the co-operation received from them.
Your Director’s also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the

committed services by the employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
For IFCl Infrastructure Development Limited

sd/- Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar Sachikanta Mishra
Managing Director Director
DIN: 10472659 DIN: 02755068

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024
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MIIDL

IFCI Infreelructure
Devselapment Limited

ANNEXURE-A

Related Party Transactions
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

_ Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not on Arm'’s length basis. — Not
Applicable

Sl No. e Part;culars _|_ Detﬁ—
i, | Name (s) of the related p party v & nature of relatlonshlp NIL
N | Nature of contracts_{arra@menti/trarlsactlon__ . NA |
i _'_: Duration of the cohfract7s7a_rrange5ent%‘ansaction ' N.A |
e Salient terms of the contracts or a’rrgngemats or transaction | N.A

| | including the value, if any |
v Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements N.A !
| ortransactions’ B B |
Vil - Date of approval by the Board B B N.A |
| vii. | Amount paid as advances, if any - | NA
il | Date on which the speCIaI resolution was passed in General ' N.A '

.| meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions on an Arm’s length basis.

s, IST Particulars N Details
IFCI LIMITED — Holdmg Company

'Name (s) of the related |
! | party &  nature of
| | relationship 4|

i, Nature of contracts / ' Interest on BcJ_nas, Rent, Salary on Deputation =a"nd |
arrangements/ transaction | Miscellaneous expenses

iii. Duration of the contracts/  One year |
| arrangements/ transaction | ‘
~iv. |Salient terms of the  Particulars ‘Amount (in Rs.)

| contracts or arrangements ‘ INCOME - 1 =
|

| or transaction including the = __ C s il
Interest earned and accrued 7,27,50,000/- |

_on investment in IFCI’s Bonds | ‘

| value, if any

| | _
i Interest earned and accrued  1,67,80,000/-
f| on Tax Free Bonds “

! Rental Income (Including | E |

' Reims of expenses)
|
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{ | Remuneration

(including

‘ V.
_ | Board |
Y/

| any

Amount paid as advances, if |‘ N.

|benefits) for staff on
 deputation

| EXPENSES T _-‘.'__
Remuneration_ﬁnclusive of |
Ibenefits) for staff on

| deputation

Rent of premises

85,43,33_47-|‘
|

13,90,200/ 1

Electricity__E;penses
” Teleph_oﬁe Expenses

_-i:Bate of approval by the N.A

A.

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions on an Arm’s length basis.

Particulars H

No. |
i. | Name (s) of the related party
& nature of relationship

Sl ‘l

| Nature of

_arrangements / transaction

iii. ‘ Duration of the contracts /
| arrangements / transaction

contracts/ |

or
the

or arrangements
transaction including
value, if any

Date of approval by the |
| Board

'! Sallent terms of the contracts | |

22,296/-

Details

IIDL Realtors Private Limited (IRPL) —

‘ (Wholly owned subsidiary Company)

of benefits) for staff on
deputation

Rent, Sa—lary on Deputation ahd Other:

Transactions ]
Monthly / Quarterly

. : |

Particulars Amount (in Rs.) “

INCOME
Rental Income 6,45,600/- ‘
Remuneration (inclusive 7,56,965/- ‘

OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Amount in Rs.

Payment made for taxes
on behalf of IRPL

69,33,405/-

Reimbursement
received

69,33,405/- | |

NA
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vi.

' Amount paid as advances, if | NA

| any

4. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions on_Arm’s length basis.

Sl.

Xi.

Xii.

Particulars

| Name (s) of the related parg
| & nature of relationship

| Nature of
| arrangements / transaction

| arrangements / transaction

or arrangements or
transaction including the
value, if any

Board

| Salient terms of the contracts _

(Group Company)

contracts/ | Rent, Salary on

TLansactions

| Duration of the contracts / | Monthly / Quarterly

Details

"IFCI FACTORS LIMITED

Deputation  and Other":-

Particulars

Amount (in Rs.)

INCOME

Rental Income

deputation

Remuneration (inclusive -
of benefits) for staff on

EXPENSES

Amount in Rs.

deputation

Remuneration (inclusive
of benefits) for staff on

12,79,188 | |

' Date of approval by the NA

Amount paid as advances, if | NA

any

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

For IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

La\-
Amrendra Kumar
Managing Director

DIN: 10472659

<l -
Sachikanta Mishra
Director
DIN: 02755068
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practice by IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”), incorporated —on 10"  October, 2007 having CIN:
U45400DL2007G01169232 and Registered office at IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi -110019.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 ("The
period under review") complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and com pliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company and have relied on the records, documents and information shared to us by the Company,
for the Financial Year ended on 3 1st March, 2024, according to the following provisions of (including any
statutory modifications, amendments, or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force):

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA'") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-Laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review]

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under
review/;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review];

26
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¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 /Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under
review|;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period
under review|;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 /Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review|;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client /Not Applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period under review|;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-
[Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review];

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021/Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period

under review|;

We further report that, we have also examined, on test-check basis, the relevant documents and records
maintained by the Company according to the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

6)) Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016;

(i) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013;

(iii) The Employer’s Provident fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

(iv) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for the systems and the
mechanism formed by the company for the Compliances under the applicable Acts and the regulations to
the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;- Complied with.

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 - [Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under
review].
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that-

The Board of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through the unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations

and guidelines.

For Surya Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries

Date:
Place: Delhi

Suryakant Gupta
Prop.

M. No.: F9250

COP No.: 10828
UDIN:

Peer Review: 907/2020



To

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members,
IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, followed by us, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the company.

Wherever required, we have duly verified the data/ information about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the manageinent has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Surya Gupta & Associates
Company Secretaries

Date:
Place: Delhi

Suryakant Gupta
Prop.

M. No.: F9250

COP No.: 10828
UDIN:

Peer Review: 907/2020

-9



NMIIDL

IFCI Infraetructure
Develapment Limlted

ANNEXURE-C

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

(Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

A robust Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the activities to be
undertaken by the Company, duly recommended by the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee have been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the
https://iidlindia.com/43CB1BE4-8C16-4F4E-8848-

Company's

website at:

10C9194FCF15/CMS/Page/Our%20CSR%20Policy

The objectives of CSR Policy are:

1.  to support activities including creation of social & physical infrastructure aimed at
inclusive development of human capital thereby enhancing the quality of life and
well-being of the people.

2. to support CSR activities which help create a cleaner, greener and healthier

environment and thereby also enhance IIDL's perception as a socially responsible

entity.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sl. Name of Director Designation/Nature | No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
No. of Directorship of CSR of CSR
Committee held Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1 Mr. Sachikanta Mishra Nominee Director/ 1 0
Chairman
2 Dr. Sumita Rai Director / Member 1 1
3 Shri Amrendra Kumar Managing Director/ 1 0
(w.e.f January 18, 2024) Member
4, | Shri Vijay Kumar Deshraj Managing Director/ 1 1
( up to January 18, 2024) Member

Composition of CSR Committee (as on March 31, 2024)

Sl. Name of Director
No.
1 Sh. Sachikanta Mishra

Designation/Nature
of Directorship

Nominee Director/

Chairman

Director/ Member

Managing Director/

Member

2 Dr. SumiEa_liai
3 Shri Amrendra Kumar
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The

10C9194FCF19/CMS/Page/Our%20CSR%20Policy

weblink is

https://iidlindia.com/43CB1BE4-8C16-4F4E-8848-

4. Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable. NIL

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set-off for the financial year, if any — NIL

Sl. No. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount available for set-off
from preceding financial years for the financial year, if any
(in Rs.) (in Rs.)
1. 2023-24 - -

6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) — Rs. 12,43,15,569/-

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5)— 24,
86,311/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years-NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any-NA

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)- 24, 86,311/-

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year (in as per Section 135(6) under Schedule VIl as per second
Rs.) _provision to Section 135(5)
Amount (in Rs.) Date of Name of the Fund | Amount | Date of
Transfer (InRs.) | Transfer
999,111/- Rs. 8,44,800/- (IIDL Unspent | 29.04.2024 N.A. N.A, N.A.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Account 2023-24)

1)




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

sl

| 0.

Name of the
Project

Item
from
the list
of
activiti
esin
Schedu
le Vil to
the Act

Local
Area
(Y/N)

Location of the
Project

State | District

Proj
ect
Dur
atio
n

Amount
Allocated
for the
Project (in
Rs.)

Amount
spentin
the
current
F.Y. {in
Rs.)

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR Account

for the

project as
per Section
135(6)(in
Rs.)

Mode of

Impleme

ntation-
Direct

(Y/N)

Mode of
Implementation
-Through
Implementing
Agency

Name CSR
Reg.
No.

CSR support
for

Awareness
Advocacy
Programs
on
Menstrual
Health
Hygiene for
Girl
Students at
81 different
Schoolsin 3
States in
India

Maha
rashtr

Rajast
han

Delhi

12
Mon
ths

6,07,200/-

202400

404800/-

CSR  support
for Bharat
Lok Shiksha
Parishad of
Rs.
8,80,000/-
for
providing
all-round
basic
education
to every
child across
rural India
in 40 Ekal
Vidyalaya

Uttar
Prade
sh

12
Mon
ths

8,80,000/-

4,40,000

4,40,000

14,87,200/-

6,42,400/-

8,44,800/-

B8



(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Mode Mode of
Item.from Location of the Amount of Implementation-
Name of the th.e .h?t o,f Logal Project spent for impIS Through-
Sl. No. Project activitiesin | Area the Project m.enta Implementing
Schedule VIl | (Y/N) (in Rs.) tion- Agency
to the Act Direct CSR Reg.
State District (Y/N) | Name No.
1. Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance Y
and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund 999,111/- Y
(PM CARES Fund)
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)- Nil
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any-
Sl. Particulars Amount (in
No. Rs.)
1. Two percent of average net profit of the company 24,86,311/-
as per Section 135(5)
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 999,111/-
3. Excess amount spent for the Financial Year (2-1) -
4, Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any
5. Amount available for set off in succeeding financial -
years (3-4)
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Amount
transferred
to Unspent Amount transferred to any fund Amount
Preceding CSR Amqunt specified under Schedule VIl as per | remaining to
SI.No. | Financial Account spent n e Section 135(6), if any be spent in
Year under Frsngtlr?sg) .succeeding
Section o ' F.Y.(inRs.)
(llisR(ss)) Name of A.mount Date of
the Fund | (inRs.) transfer
2020-21 4,16,839 4,16,839 - = - 0
2 2021-22 22,74, 228 22,74, 228 - - - 0
3 2022-23 24,72, 892 7,11,836 - - - 16,64,958_
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for the ongoing projects of the preceding
financial years:

among students of selected
schools of Uttar Pradesh under
the project “PRERNA”

Sl. Project Name of the Project F.Y. in which Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of
No. ID the project Duration Amount spenton amount spent the project
was allocated for | the project at the end of (Completed
commenced the project in the reporting F.Y. /Ongoing)
(InRs.) reporting (inRs.)
F.Y.(in Rs.)
1 NA Construction of 15 tollets and 2020-21 2yrs 22, 25,357 4,16,839 22, 25,357 Completed
15 bathrooms at Jai Kumar 1.5
Anudanit Ashramshala-A months
residential Tribal School in
Kochai Village, Palghar,
Maharashtra
2 NA MPCON Foundation for 2021-22 lyrs 4 25,26,920 22,74,228 25,26,920 Completed
innovation , educatlon, soclal months
transformation & research (
MPCON FINeSTAR) proposal for
installation of sanitary napkin
vending machines with
incinerator , organising hyglene
awareness campaigns and
construction of toilets in school
/ colleges under CSR Initiatlves.
3** NA CSR  Support for creating | 2022-23 | 10 24,72,892 7,11,836 7,11,836 Ongoing
entrepreneurship  awareness Months

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset wise details)

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)-Nil

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset-Nil

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address, etc.-Not applicable

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset)- No

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net

profit as per Section 135(5) — N.A.

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar

Managing Director
DIN: 10472659

Ry

Sachikanta Mishra
Chairman of CSR Committee
DIN: 02755068

sd/-




Form AOC-1

MIIDL

G Infrasiructure
Hevolopment Limited

ANNEXURE-D

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

As per Ind-AS
{(Amount in Rs.)
Sl. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary 1IDL Realtors
Private Limited
2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different Same as of

from the holding company’s reporting period

Holding Company

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign N.A
subsidiaries
4 Share Capital 100,000/-
5 Other Equity 10, 17, 00,917-
6. Total Assets 19, 31, 46, 039/-
7. Total Liabilities 19, 31, 46, 039/-
8 Investments in Property 7,58,79,084/-
9. Turnover 2,72,85,120/-
10. Profit before taxation 2,38,01, 846/-
11. Provision for taxation 1,02,01,743/-

12. Profit after taxation

1,36,00,103/-

13, Proposed Dividend NIL
14, Percentage (%) of shareholding 100%
a. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: - NIL
b. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: - NiL

For and on behalf of the Board
IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

Sd/-
Amrendra Kumar
Managing Director
DIN: 10472659

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 31, 2024

Sd/-
Sachikanta Mishra
Director
DIN: 02755068
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The
statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit
Report dated 19 June 2024 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 27 April 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditor and
is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records. The Audit Report has been revised by the statutory
auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit.

In addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under section
143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for
enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A Comment on Profitability
A.1  Assets
A.1.1 Current Assets
Inventories (Note No. 9): 6966.28 lakh

A. IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company) overvalued the inventories at
Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaluru Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at
Z1177.24 lakh and 21211.99 lakh instead of T1101.24 lakh and Z1180.28 lakh respectively which
resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit for the year by ¥107.71 lakh besides non-
compliance with the significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates that
“inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Specifically
Jfor Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor space acquired/purchased for development
and/or sale/resale and other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that “these
are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all
considerations/cost which are attributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred

)

specifically thereto”.
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For Land Bank "it consists of asset purchased by the company that it intends to develop later on
into residential/commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or nel realizable value whichever is less.
However, it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more

than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at 50.67 lakh. However, the said property was not
a sanctioned property, valuer in his Report (27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken as zero. This has resulted in
overstatement of inventory and profit by 250.67 lakh.

A2 Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): 944,72 lakh

A. IIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of ¥106.25 lakh receivable on Preference shares
applying Income tax rate of 34.608 per cent’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per ceni. This
led to the creation of deferred tax liability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of ¥29.56 lakh.

B. IIDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during FY 2023-24. As per section
43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961, provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense
for computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of Z15.21 lakh (254.69 lakh @ 27.82
per cent) should have been created on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of
deferred tax asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax liability (Net) by 15.21 lakh.

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and understatement of Profits by
322.42 lakh (%7.21 lakh plus 15.21 lakh). Consequently, deferred tax liability are also overstated

by ¥22.44 lakh.

A.3  Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)
Unsecured considered good - 3223.76 lakh
Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: 3117.61 lakh

Above includes ¥10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of IIDL suites which are
pending recovery for more than seven years. The Board of Directors of the Company while
considering the proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed (February
2023) that above stated receivables should not be written off and proper follow up should be done
for recovery of the outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to recover
anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the Company should have created the necessary

! Tax rate 32%, surcharge 12% and cess 3% applicable till Y 2017-18.

2 Tax rate 25%, surcharge 7% and cess 4% applicable from FY 2018-19.

3 Bharat Petrolcum Corporation Limited, HCL Technologies Limited, Samsung Heavy Industries India Pvt. Ltd., NII'T
Technologies and ONGC Limited
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provision towards the same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the time

elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in understatement of Provision for
doubtful debt and overstatement of trade receivables by 210.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for

the year are also overstated by 210.65 lakh.

B. Comments on Financial Position

B.1. Non-Current Assets — Financial Assets
Others (Note No. 8) —-Z3881.07 lakh
Current Assets — Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 11) -35095.66 lakh
Bank balance other than (iii) (Note No. 12) -26805.54 lakh

IIDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment dealt at [IDL. HO and
Hospitality segment dealt at [IDL Suites. As on 31 March 2024, [IDL suites has 17 Fixed Deposits
(FDs) with IDBI Bank totaling ¥963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these FDs have not
been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the Guidance Note on Division I - Ind AS Schedule

IT1 to the Companies Act 2013, as detailed below:

Classification of FDs Amount classified in the |Amount should have been
Balance Sheet (Z in lakh) classified (% in lakh)
FDs with maturity less than 3 NIL 70.00
months
FDs with maturity in between 3 356.11 576.11
and 12 months
FDs with maturity more than 12 607.34 317.34
months
TOTAL 963.45 963.45

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash cquivalents and Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash equivalents forming part of Current Assets are understated by ¥70 lakh and 2220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated by 290.00 lakh.
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C Comment on Cash Flow Statement

C.1  Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - T888.92 lakh
Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — 3666.24 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS — 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that, “Under the indirect method,
the net cash flow from operating activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects
of items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows”.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and dividends received and paid shall
each be disclosed separately. Cash flows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends
received in the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows arising from
operating activities. In the case of other entities, cash flows arising from interest paid should be
classified as cash flows from financing activities while interest and dividends received should be

classified as cash flows from investing activities.”

Following discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of [IDL have been observed:

(i) Profit of ¥122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted while arriving at cash flow
from operating activities.

(ii) IIDL received interest of ¥1024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds during the year 2023-24.
However, Interest income classified as investing activities was only 173.27 lakh in the Cash

Flow Statement.
This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating Activities and understatement

of Cash Flow from Investing Activities by ¥974.17 lakh (2122.57 lakh plus Z851.60 lakh)
besides non-compliance to the aforesaid Provisions of Ind AS - 7.
D. Other Comments

D.1  Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) - Jangipur Bengal Mega
Food Park Limited: ¥450.73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, IIDL valued the investment in Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited
(Associate) at ¥5.30 per share and has shown investment of ¥450.73 lakh (85,04,288 * ¥5.30 per
sha'lre) and booked impairment loss of ¥204.10 lakh based on the valuation of appointed
valuer. However, [FCI Venture Capital Funds Limited (another subsidiary of IFCI Limited) has
valued its investments in the Associate at 1.14 per share during FY 2023-24.

The issuc is considered material in audit as there is substantial difference in the valuation of

Investment in the same Associate by two group companies of [FCI Limited which carries an impact
0f %353.78 lakh ((Z5.30 per share minus Z1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on the Investments of 1IDL.
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D.2 It was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri Shivendra Tomar,
Ex. MD (IIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (IIDL), M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd. (HUIPL)
and Other unknown persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and abuse of
official position by public servant involving huge excess payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference
to CBI letter dated 02 February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, General Manager,
[FCI Ltd. (Ex-COD/CEO/MD, IIDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act,

1988 (as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI’s approval to CBI for conducting investigation against
Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL) which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements, Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No. D.1, no corrective action
was taken by the Company.

D.3 A refercnce is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17 (Trade Receivable) which
stipulates that “The Company has adopted simplified approach using the provision matrix method
Jfor recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision Matrix is based on three years
rolling average defaull rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporting date to
determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of ¥54.69 lakh was provided
towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during FY 2023-24, the Company did not follow the
aforesaid policy as no average default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived at following the above-
mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

fffoads
(S. Ahlladini Pandzay)

Director Generalof Audit
(Industry & Corporute Affairs)
New Delhi

PPlace: New Delhi

Date: '
P9 JuL 2024
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6) (b) READ WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act.
This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 19 June 2024
which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 27 April 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptrolier and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure Development
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6)(a) read with section 129 (4) of the
Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Infrastructure
Development Limited (the Company) but did not conduct supplementary audit of the financial
statements of IIDL Realtors Private Limited (the subsidiary) for the year ended on that date. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditor and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company
personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. The Audit Report has
been revised by the statutory auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during
supplementary audit.

In addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under section
143(6)(b) read with section 129 (4) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my

view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the consolidated financial statements and

the related audit report:
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A Comment on Consolidated Profitability
A.l1  Assets
A.1.1 Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): 36966.28 lakh

A. IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company) overvalued the inventories at
Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaluru Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at
Z1177.24 lakh and 1211.99 lakh instead of Z1101.24 lakh and Z1180.28 lakh respectively which
resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit for the year by ¥107.71 lakh besides non-
compliance with the significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates that
“inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Specifically
Jor Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor space acquired/purchased for development
and/or sale/resale and other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that “these
are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all
considerations/cost which are attributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred

’

specifically thereto”.

For Land Bank “it consists of asset purchased by the company that it intends to develop later on
into residential/commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value whichever is less.
However, it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more

than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at 50.67 lakh. However, the said property was not
a sanctioned property, valuer in his Report (27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken as zero. This has resulted in
overstatement of inventory and profit by ¥50.67 lakh.

A2 Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): ¥1012.69 lakh

A. IIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of ¥106.25 lakh receivable on Preference shares
applying Income tax rate of 34.608 per cent’ instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cent’. This
led to the creation of deferred tax liability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of 29.56 fakh.

B. I[IDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during FY 2023-24. As per section
43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961, provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense
for computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of T15.21 lakh (254.69 lakh @) 27.82

1 Tax rate 32%, surcharge 12% and cess 3% applicable till FY 2017-18.
2 Tax rate 25%, surcharge 7% and cess 4% applicable from FY 2018-19
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per cent) should have been created on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of
deferred tax asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax liability (Net) by Z15.21 lakh.

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and understatement of Profits by
%22.42 lakh (X7.21 lakh plus 15.21 lakh). Consequently, deferred tax liability are also overstated
by 222.44 lakh.

A.3  Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)
Unsecured considered good - 2223.76 lakh
Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: Z117.61 lakh

Above includes Z10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of IIDL suites which are
pending recovery for more than seven years. The Board of Directors of the Company while
considering the proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed (February
2023) that above stated receivables should not be written off and proper follow up should be done
for recovery of the outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to recover
anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the Company should have created the necessary
provision towards the same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the time

elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in understatement of Provision for
doubtful debt and overstatement of trade receivables by 10.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for

the year are also overstated by ¥10.65 lakh.
B. Comments on Consolidated Financial Position

B.1. Non-Current Assets — Financial Assets
Others (Note No. 8) —23347.90 Lakh
Current Assets — Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 11) -25108.77 Lakh
Bank balance other than those above (Note No, 12) -27724.41 Lakh

IIDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment dealt at IIDI. HO and
Hospitality segment dealt at [IDL Suites. As on 31 March 2024, IIDL suites has 17 Fixed Deposits
(FDs) with IDBI Bank totaling ¥963.45 lakh, However, the classifications of these FDs have not
been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the Guidance Note on Division II — Ind AS Schedule

[1I to the Companies Act 2013, as detailed below:

? Bharat Petrolcum Corporation Limited, HCL Technologies Limited, Samsung Heavy Industries India Pvt. Ltd., NIIT
Technologies and ONGC Limited
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Classification of FDs Amount classified in the Amount should have been
Balance Sheet (Z in lakh) classified (2 in lakh)
FDs with maturity less than 3 NIL 70.00
months
FDs with maturity in between 3 356.11 576.11
and 12 months
FDs with maturity more than 12 607.34 317.34
months
TOTAL 963.45 963.45

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and Bank Balances other than Cash
and Cash equivalents forming part of Current Assets are understated by 270 lakh and 2220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated by $290.00 lakh.

C Comment on Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

C.1  Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - €1107.02 lakh
Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — ¥69.34 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS — 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that, “Under the indirect method,
the net cash flow from operating activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects
of items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows”.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash _flows from interest and dividends received and paid shall
each be disclosed separately. Cash flows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends .
received in the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows arising from
operating activities. In the case of other entities, cash flows arising from interest paid should be
classified as cash flows from financing activities while interest and dividends received should be

classified as cash flows from investing activities.”
Following discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of IIDL have been observed:

(i) Profit 0f ¥122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted while arriving at cash flow

from operating activities.
(if) 1IDL reccived interest of 1024.87 lakh on Dcposit and Bonds during the year 2023-24.

However, Interest income classitied as investing activities was only ¥173.27 lakh in the Cash

I'low Statement.
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This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating Activities and understatement
of Cash Flow from Investing Activities by ¥974.17 lakh (%122.57 lakh plus ¥851.60 lakh)

besides non-compliance to the aforesaid Provisions of Ind AS -7,

D. Other Comments

D.1  Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) - Jangipur Bengal Mega
Food Park Limited: ¥450.73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, IIDL valued the investment in the Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited

(Associate) at ¥5.30 per share and has shown investment of ¥450.73 lakh (85,04,288 * ¥5.30 per

share) and booked impairment loss of %204.10 lakh based on the valuation of appointed

valuer. However, IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited (another subsidiary of IFCI Limited) has

valued its investments in the Associate at Z1.14 per share during FY 2023-24,

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial difference in the valuation of
Investment in the same Associate by two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact

0f¥353.78 lakh ((¥5.30 per share minus Z1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on the Investments of IIDL.

D.2 It was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri Shivendra Tomar,
Ex. MD (IIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (IIDL), M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd. (HUIPL)
and Other unknown persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and abuse of
official position by public servant involving huge excess payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference
to CBI letter dated 02 February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, General Manager,
IFCI Ltd. (Ex-COD/CEOQ/MD, IIDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act,
1988 (as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI’s approval to CBI for conducting investigation against
Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL) which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No. D.1, no corrective action

was taken by the Company.
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D.3 A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17 (Trade Receivable)
which stipulates that “The Company has adopted simplified approach using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision Matrix is based on
three years rolling average default rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on fotal
credit risk exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporting
date o determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of Z54.69 lakh was
provided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during FY 2023-24, the Company did not
follow the aforesaid policy as no average default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit

losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived at following the above-
mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(S. Ahllad Lrg,lla-rrrﬁ)

Director General of Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi

Date: 1 g JU['ZUZA
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Replies of CAG Comments on the Annual Accounts (SFS) of IIDL for the year 2023-24

S.N.

CAG Observations

Management
Comments

A
A.l
A.l.1

Comment on Profitability
Assets

Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): ¥6966.28 lakh

A.TFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company)
overvalued the inventories at Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaluru
Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at ¥1177.24
lakh and ¥1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and ¥1180.28 lakh
respectively which resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit
for the year by %107.71 lakh besides non-compliance with the
significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates
that “inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever
is lower. Specifically for Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor
space acquired/purchased for development and/or sale/resale and
other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that
“these are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein
costs are determined by adding all considerations/cost which are
attributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred
specifically thereto”.,

For Land Bank it consists of asset purchased by the company that it
intends to develop later on into residential/commercial project but on
which no construction has commenced. Land is initially recognized at
Jfair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value
whichever is less. However, it is discounted to present value when
payment ferms are deferred for a period of more than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at ¥50.67 lakh.
However, the said property was not a sanctioned property, valuer in
his Report (27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken
as zero. This has resulted in overstatement of inventory and profit by
%50.67 lakh.

The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter 1 of
FY 2024-25.

A2

Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): ¥944.72 lakh

A.IIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of ¥106.25 lakh
receivable on Preference shares applying Income tax rate of 34.608
per cent instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cent’. This led to
the creation of deferred tax liability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of ¥29.56
lakh.

B. IIDL provided I54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during
FY 2023-24. As per section 43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961,
provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense for

A. The same will be
considered in F.Y. 2024-
25.

B. The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter 1 of

Ua




computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of ¥15.21
lakh (%54.69 lakh @ 27.82 per cent) should have been created
on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of deferred tax
asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax liability (Net) by

T15.21 lakh.
The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and

understatement of Profits by ¥22.42 lakh (%7.21 lakh plus ¥15.21
lakh). Consequently, deferred tax liability are also overstated by
322.44 lakh.

FY 2024-25.

A3

Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)

Unsecured considered good - ¥223.76 lakh

Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: ¥117.61 lakh

Above includes 10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors?® of
IIDL suites which are pending recovery for more than seven years.
The Board of Directors of the Company while considering the
proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed
(February 2023) that above stated receivables should not be written
off and proper follow up should be done for recovery of the
outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to
recover anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the
Company should have created the necessary provision towards the
same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the
time elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in
understatement of Provision for doubtful debt and overstatement of
trade receivables by Z10.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for the
year are also overstated by %10.65 lakh.

Provision for doubtful
debts of Rs. 10.65 Lakhs
has been made in
financials of Quarter 1.

Comments on Financial Poesition

Non-Current Assets — Financial Assets

Others (Note No. 8) —¥3881.07 lakh

Current Assets — Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 11) -¥5095.66 lakh

Bank balance other than (iii) (Note No. 12) -36805.54 lakh

[IDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment
dealt at [IDL HO and Hospitality segment dealt at IIDL Suites. As on
31 March 2024, JIDL suites has 17 Fixed Deposits (FDs) with IDBI
Bank totalling ¥963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these
FDs have not been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the
Guidance Note on Division II — Ind AS Schedule III to the Companies

Act 2013, as detailed below:

Amount should
have been classified
(X in lakh)

Amount classified in
the Balance Sheet (X
in lakh)

Classification of ¥Ds

The same has been
reclassified and updated
in financials of IIDL

Suites as well as
Standalone/Consolidated
IIDL financials of

Quarter 1 of FY 2024-
25.
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FDs with maturity less NIL 70.00
than 3 months
FDs with maturity in 356.11 576.11
between 3 and 12 months
FDs with maturity more 607.34 317.34
than 12 months

TOTAL 963.45 963.45

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents forming part of
Current Assets are understated by %70 lakh and %220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated
by 2290.00 lakh.

Comment on Cash Flow Statement

Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - T888.92 lakh

Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — ¥666.24 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS — 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that,
“Under the indirect method, the net cash flow from operating
activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects of
items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash
flows™.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and
dividends received and paid shall each be disclosed separately. Cash
[flows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends received in
the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows
arising from operating activities. In the case of other entities, cash
flows arising from interest paid should be classified as cash flows
from financing activities while interest and dividends received should
be classified as cash flows from investing activities.”

Following discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of IIDL have
been observed:

(i) Profit of ¥122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted
while arriving at cash flow from operating activities.

(ii) TIDL received interest of 21024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds
during the year 2023-24. However, Interest income classified as
investing activities was only 173.27 lakh in the Cash Flow
Statement.

This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating
Activities and understatement of Cash Flow from Investing Activities
by %¥974.17 lakh (%122.57 lakh plus %851.60 lakh) besides non-
compliance to the said Provisions of Ind AS - 7.

The same will be
updated and rectified in
Half yearly Cash flow
statement i.e. Sept’2024.

Other Comments
Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) -

Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited: ¥450.73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, TIDL valued the investment in Jangipur Bengal
Mega Food Park Limited (Associate) at ¥5.30 per share and has

Independent  valuation
from IBBI empanelled
valuer was obtained by
IIDL, based on the
valuation report value of
Rs. 5.30 per share was

-
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shown investment of ¥450.73 lakh (85,04,288 * ¥5.30 per share) and
booked impairment loss of ¥204.10 lakh based on the valuation of
appointed valuer. However, IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
(another subsidiary of IFCI Limited) has valued its investments in the
Associate at T1.14 per share during FY 2023-24.

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial
difference in the valuation of Investment in the same Associate by
two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact of
¥353.78 lakh ((%5.30 per share minus Z1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on
the Investments of IIDL.

considered.

Going forward it will be
proposed that IIDL and
IVCF gets the valuation
done by one valuer only
and after deliberations
same value will be
considered.

D.2

It was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri
Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (IIDL),
M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd. (HUIPL) and Other unknown
persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and
abuse of official position by public servant involving huge excess
payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference to CBI letter dated 02
February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh.
Shivendra Tomar, General Manager, IFCI Ltd. (Ex-COD/CEO/MD,
IIDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988
(as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI’s approval to CBI for
conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD
(IIDL) which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No.
D.1, no corrective action was taken by the Company.

Shri Shivendra Tomar
was an employee of
IFCI Ltd and governed
by IFCI Staff Regulations,
therefore the case is
being handled by IFCI
Ltd. The matteris under
investigation with CBI.
Further, status was
sought from HR Deptt.
of IFCI Ltd. and they
have informed that there
is no further update from
CBI.

Matter related to
disclosure will be taken
up  during  current
financial year 2024-25.

D.3

A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17
(Trade Receivable) which stipulates that “The Company has adopted
simplified approach using the provision matrix method for
recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision
Matrix is based on three years rolling average default rates observed
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on
total credit risk exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for
more than one year at the reporting date to determine lifetime
Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of %54.69 lakh was
provided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during FY 2023-
24, the Company did not follow the aforesaid policy as no average
default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived
at following the above-mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

Trade receivables policy
is being made and will
be implemented in
current financial year
2024-25.




Replies of CAG Comments on the Annual Accounts (CFS) of IIDL for the year 2023-24

S.N.

CAG Observations

Management
Comments

A
Al
A.1.1

Comment on Consolidated Profitability

Assets

Current Assets

Inventories (Note No. 9): T6966.28 lakh

A. IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (IIDL, the Company)
overvalued the inventories at Bengaluru (Financial City Bengaluru
Land) and Uttar Pradesh (Ramprastha Housing Complex) at ¥1177.24
lakh and ¥1211.99 lakh instead of ¥1101.24 lakh and Z1180.28 lakh
respectively which resulted in overstatement of inventories and profit
for the year by Z107.71 lakh besides non-compliance with the
significant accounting policy no. 1.10 (Inventories) which stipulates
that “inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever
is lower. Specifically for Building/Residential complex, Built-up floor
space acquired/purchased for development and/or sale/resale and
other removable/disposable assets existing thereon. It states that
“these are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value wherein
costs are determined by adding all considerations/cost which are
attributable to purchase/acquisition and other expenses incurred
specifically thereto”.

For Land Bank “it consists of asset purchased by the company that it
intends to develop later on into residential/commercial project but on
which no construction has commenced. Land is initially recognized at
Jair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value
whichever is less. However, it is discounted to present value when
payment terms are deferred for a period of more than one year.”

B. The Company valued one of its properties at Z50.67 lakh.
However, the said property was not a sanctioned property, valuer in
his Report (27 March 2024) had considered its fair value as zero.

Therefore, the value of the aforesaid property should have been taken
as zero. This has resulted in overstatement of inventory and profit by
%50.67 lakh.

The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter 1 of
FY 2024-25.

A2

Deferred tax Liabilities (Net) (Note 22): ¥1022.69 lakh

A.IIDL created Deferred Tax Liability on interest of Z106.25 lakh
receivable on Preference shares applying Income tax rate of 34.608
per cent' instead of applicable tax rate of 27.82 per cent’. This led to
the creation of deferred tax liability of ¥36.77 lakh instead of ¥29.56
lakh.

B. IIDL provided ¥54.69 lakh towards bad and doubtful debts during
FY 2023-24. As per section 43 (B) of the Income Tax Act 1961,
provision for bad and doubtful debt is a disallowed expense for

A. The same will be
considered in F.Y. 2024-
25.

B. The same has been
rectified and updated in
financials of Quarter 1 of

S




computation of Income tax. Therefore, deferred Tax asset of ¥15.21
lakh (%54.69 lakh @ 27.82 per cent) should have been created
on provision for bad and doubtful debts. Non creation of deferred tax
asset has resulted in overstatement of Deferred Tax liability (Net) by
T15.21 lakh.

The above has resulted in overstatement of deferred Tax expense and
understatement of Profits by %22.42 lakh (%7.21 lakh plus ¥15.21
lakh). Consequently, deferred tax liability are also overstated by
322.44 lakh.

FY 2024-25.

A3

Current Trade Receivable (Note No. 10)

Unsecured considered good - 3223.76 lakh

Provision for Bad/ Doubtful Debts: ¥117.61 lakh

Above includes Z10.65 lakh pertaining to corporate sundry debtors® of
IIDL suites which are pending recovery for more than seven years.
The Board of Directors of the Company while considering the
proposal of write off of corporate sundry debtors, inter-alia, directed
(February 2023) that above stated receivables should not be written
off and proper follow up should be done for recovery of the
outstanding amount. However, the Company has not been able to
recover anything against the above receivables. Therefore, the
Company should have created the necessary provision towards the
same considering the conservative principle of accounting and the
time elapsed.

Non creation of provision towards doubtful debts has resulted in
understatement of Provision for doubtful debt and overstatement of
trade receivables by Z10.65 lakh. Consequently, the profits for the
year are also overstated by 10.65 lakh.

Provision for doubtful
debts of Rs. 10.65 Lakhs
has been made in
financials of Quarter 1.

Comments on Consolidated Financial Position

Non-Current Assets — Financial Assets

Others (Note No. 8) ~¥3347.90 lakh

Current Assets — Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents (Note No. 11) -X5108.77 lakh

Bank balance other than (iii) (Note No. 12) -X7724.41 lakh

IIDL operates in two reportable segments viz Real Estate segment
dealt at IIDL HO and Hospitality segment dealt at IIDL Suites. As on
31 March 2024, IIDL suites has 17 Fixed Deposits (FDs) with IDBI
Bank totalling ¥963.45 lakh. However, the classifications of these
FDs have not been made as per clauses 8.1.11 and 8.1.16 of the
Guidance Note on Division II — Ind AS Schedule III to the Companies

Act 2013, as detailed below:

Amount should
have been classified
(R in lakh)

Amount classified in
the Balance Sheet (R
in lakh)

Classification of FDs

The same has been
reclassified and updated
in financials of IIDL
Suites as well as
Standalone/Consolidated
IIDL financials of
Quarter 1 of FY 2024-
25.
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FDs with maturity less NIL 70.00
than 3 months
FDs with maturity in 356.11 576.11
between 3 and 12 months
FDs with maturity more 607.34 317.34
than 12 months

TOTAL 963.45 963.45

Due to the above misclassification, Cash & Cash equivalents and
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents forming part of
Current Assets are understated by 70 lakh and %220.00 lakh
respectively and Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) are overstated
by 2290.00 lakh.

Comment on Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Net Cash inflow from Operating Activities (A) - ¥1107.02 lakh

Net Cash inflow from Investing Activities (B) — 369.34 lakh

Para 20 (c) of Ind AS — 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) stipulates that,
“Under the indirect method, the net cash flow from operating
activities is determined by adjusting profit or loss for the effects of
items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash
flows™.

Further, Para 31 stipulates that “Cash flows from interest and
dividends received and paid shall each be disclosed separately. Cash
flows arising from interest paid and interest and dividends received in
the case of a financial institution should be classified as cash flows
arising from operating activities. In the case of other entities, cash
flows arising from interest paid should be classified as cash flows
Jrom financing activities while interest and dividends received should
be classified as cash flows from investing activities.”

Following discrepancies in the Cash Flow Statement of IIDL have
been observed:

(1) Profit of ¥122.57 lakh from sale of fixed assets was not adjusted
while arriving at cash flow from operating activities.

(i1) TIDL received interest of 21024.87 lakh on Deposit and Bonds
during the year 2023-24. However, Interest income classified as
investing activities was only %173.27 lakh in the Cash Flow
Statement.

This has resulted in overstatement of Cash Flow from Operating
Activities and understatement of Cash Flow from Investing Activities
by %974.17 lakh (%122.57 lakh plus %851.60 lakh) besides non-
compliance to the said Provisions of Ind AS - 7.

The same will be
updated and rectified in
Half yearly Cash flow
statement i.e. Sept’2024.

Other Comments
Investment in Equity Instruments of Associates (Note No. 6) -

Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited: I450.73 lakh

During FY 2023-24, IIDL valued the investment in Jangipur Bengal
Mega Food Park Limited (Associate) at ¥5.30 per share and has

Independent  valuation
from IBBI empanelled
valuer was obtained by
[IDL, based on the
valuation report value of
Rs. 5.30 per share was
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shown investment of ¥450.73 lakh (85,04,288 * ¥5.30 per share) and
booked impairment loss of ¥204.10 lakh based on the valuation of
appointed valuer. However, IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
(another subsidiary of IFCI Limited) has valued its investments in the
Associate at 1.14 per share during FY 2023-24.

The issue is considered material in audit as there is substantial
difference in the valuation of Investment in the same Associate by
two group companies of IFCI Limited which carries an impact of
%353.78 lakh ((5.30 per share minus ¥1.14 per share) *85,04,288) on
the Investments of IIDL.

considered.

Going forward it will be
proposed that IIDL and
IVCF gets the valuation
done by one valuer only
and after deliberations
same value will be
considered.

D.2

It was noticed that CBI filed (29 November 2018) an FIR against Shri
Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD (IIDL), Shri P. Srinivas, Ex. MD (IIDL),
M/s Holistic Urban Innovation Pvt. Ltd. (HUIPL) and Other unknown
persons for suspected offence of Criminal conspiracy, Cheating and
abuse of official position by public servant involving huge excess
payments to HUIPL. Further, in reference to CBI letter dated 02
February 2022, IFCI has conveyed (29 April 2022) the approval of
competent authority for conducting investigation against Sh.
Shivendra Tomar, General Manager, IFCI Ltd. (Ex-COD/CEO/MD,
[IDL) under various provisions of Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988
(as amended in 2018) and Indian Penal Code.

However, the above fraud case and IFCI’s approval to CBI for
conducting investigation against Sh. Shivendra Tomar, Ex. MD
(IIDL) which is a material fact, was not disclosed in the financial
statements. Thus, financial statements are deficient to that extent.

Despite being pointed out during FY 2022-23 vide comment No.
D.1, no corrective action was taken by the Company.

Shri Shivendra Tomar
was an employee of
IFCI Ltd and governed
by IFCI Staff Regulations,
therefore the case is
being handled by IFCI
Ltd. The matteris under
investigation with CBI.
Further, status was
sought from HR Deptt.
of IFCI Ltd. and they
have informed that there
is no further update from
CBI.

Matter related to
disclosure will be taken
up during current
financial year 2024-25.

D.3

A reference is invited to the Significant Accounting Policy No. 1.17
(Trade Receivable) which stipulates that “The Company has adopted
simplified approach using the provision matrix method for
recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The Provision
Matrix is based on three years rolling average default rates observed
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on
total credit risk exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for
more than one year at the reporting date to determine lifetime
Expected Credit Losses”. Though an amount of ¥54.69 lakh was
provided towards provision for bad/doubtful Debts during I'Y 2023~
24, the Company did not follow the aforesaid policy as no average
default rates were applied to arrive at expected credit losses.

Hence, the amount of provision for bad/doubtful debts was not arrived
at following the above-mentioned Accounting Policy No. 1.17.

Trade receivables policy
is being made and will
be implemented in
current financial year
2024-25.
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VPGS & CO. Chartered_Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of M/s IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

This revised Independent Auditor’s Report is being issued in suppression of our earlier independent Auditor’s
Report dated 27 April 2024, at the instance of Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) of India, The revised
report is issued in view of cerlain modifications in Emphasis of matter, Report on other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements of Independent Auditor’s Report and Annexure-A of Independent Auditor’s Report pertaining to
the regulatory requirement as required by the Companies (Auditor’s ‘Report) Order 2020 (CARO) issued by the
central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, Further, we
confirm that these do not affect true and fair view and our opinion expressed thereon.

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/s [FCI Infrastructure Development Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the standalone statement of profit
and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement
of cash flows for the year then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Standalone Financial
Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2024, and profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to point no 49A to the financial statements regarding lease hold rights for 4.37 acres of
Jand in respect of financial city Bengaluru. The lease period for 2.37 acres of land expired on 2 November
2021 and for the balance 2 acres ol land, lease period had expired on 12 October 2022. The request letter to
renew such lease agreement is submitted to KIADB and as informed to us, the renewal thereof is under
process till the date of signing of audit report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

Office Address: JD-2C 2nd Floor, Pitampura, Delhi 110034
Tel: +91 11 49040767 7 + 1 11 49040239 / M: +91 9811065170 / E-mail: mail@vpgs.in Website: www.vpgs.in



The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors™ report but does not include the financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and those charges with Governance’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding ol the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectivelv lor ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant (o the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to traud or error.

In preparing the standalone [inuncial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis ol accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s tinancial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks ol material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse conscquences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act’2013, we enclose herewith, as per “Annexure-B” and
“Annexure-C” our report [or the company on the Directions and Sub-directions respectively, issued by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

3. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary [or the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act.

e) The provision of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of disqualifications of directors are
not applicable to the Company being Government Company in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E)
dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs,;

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operaling effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure D”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial positions
in its financial statement — refer Note 43 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. () The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneliciaries™) by or on behalf of the Company Or

e provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company [rom any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

e directly or indircetly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
(“Ultimate Beneliciaries™) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or




¢ provide any guarantee, security, or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice (hat has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (iv.) (a) and
(iv.) (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Interim dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous
year, is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated (hroughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with.

(C) With respect to the maticr (o be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.
The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 507971¢

Vivek Raheja
Partner N 4
Membership No. 094781

Place: New Delhi

Date: 19 June 2024
UDIN: 24094781 BKAGRX9:56
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Annexure A to the independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of M/s IFCI
Infrastructure Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

i

(a)

(b

(©)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full partlculars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has a regular program of physical verification of Property, Plant
and Equipment are verified in the phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deed of immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed
in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company except

| Whether | period held
| Gross promoter, indicate Reason for not
Description d | . Held in name director or being held in
carrying . range,
property of their name of
value . where
‘ relative or " company*
appropriate
employee




il.

iil.

Property located | One of the surv;‘
if . Pangoorvelly. | number identified as
riyur Revenue | IFCI temple land due to

Village, Districl- | Infrastructure which  registration
Villanpur, ' Development has not take;gn lace
Puducherry l Rs. 10.01 Limited N 14 years & 08 prace.
having area ol | Crores (through sale 0 months IIDL is in
21.279 acres II certificate process of resolving

] issued by IFCI the  issue

' Ltd) concern authority.

|
Lﬂ |

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(e)

(2)

records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the infurmation and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property ander the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such \orification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as followed by the
management werce appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical
stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

(a)

(b)

(©)

records of the Company , the Company does not have any working capital limit. Accordingly, clause
3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Compuny. the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security
or granted any advance in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships. and unsecured loans granted to other parties during the year. The company has
not granted any loans sccured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties during the year.

(A) Based on the audit procedure carried on by us and as per the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not granted any loans to subsidiaries.

(B) Based on the audit procedure carried on by us and as per the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee
or provided security 10 any other entity during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedure conducted
by us we are of the vpinion, that the terms and conditions of the loans given are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interenl of the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the




iv.

vii.

@

(e)

¢

(a)

(b)

records of the Company. in case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment interest has
been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of loans
given.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed
or extended or [resh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party.

According to the infurmation and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Compan. the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company . the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security
as specified under Scctions 185 of the Companies Act,2013 and the Company has not provided any
guarantee or sccurity as specified under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
Company has complicd with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to
loans given and investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly. vlause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section-
148 of the Companics Act. The Company has maintained the prescribed records. However, no
separate cost records have been maintained.

In respect ol statutory dues:

The Company docs not have liability in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise and Value
added tax during the vear since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into
GST.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
records of the Company . amounts deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in respect of undisputed
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Duly ol Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities except for slight delays in a few cases.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees® State Insurance, Income Tax, Dutyof Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as al 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, statutory dues referred to in subclause (a),
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as under:

Name of the Statue Amount (Rupees in Period for which Forum where

lakhs) amount related dispute
pending

Income Tax Act. 1901 63.02 AY 2012-13 ITAT

Income Tax Act. 1901 49.07 AY 2013-14

Income Tax Act. 10] 98.73 AY 2014-15
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EQ‘)_”EMCL'_L"’_! [ 7985 AY 2015-16 CIT(A)
Income Tax Act. 1901 24.16 AY 2016-17 ITAT
| Income Tax Act. 1901 58.60 AY 2017-18 CIT(A)
Income Tax Acl. 1901 73.53 AY 2018-19 CPC
| Income Tax Act. 1901 1.34 AY 2019-20 CPC
| Income Tax Act. 1901 82.92 AY 2020-21 CPC
| Income Tax Acl. 1ol 232.61 AY 2021-22 CPC
Income Tax Act. 1961 168.15 AY 2022-23 CPC
Indian Stamp Acl. 13899 150.02 - Allahabad
I High Court
Assessment Year / State Amount (Rupees in lakhs) Forum from where
demand pending / addition
. - - imposed
2017 - 18/ Dethi 31.08 GST Appellate
2017 187U, 6.81 GST Appellate
viii. According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company. the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

ix. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company did not have any loans and borrowings from any lender during
the vear. Accordingly. clause ix(a) of the order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company. the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
instilution or government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us by the management, the company has not
obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause ix(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) Accarding to the information and explanation given to us onan overall examination of the balance
sheel o[ the Company. we report that no funds have been raised on short-term basis by the company.
Accordingly, clause ix(d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us on an overall examination of the financial
statements ol the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
persoir on account vl or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013,

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Compans has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

x. (a) The Canpany has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including _
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xi.

xiv.

(b)

debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records ol the company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the order
is not applicable.

(a) Based on the examination of the books and records of the company and according to the information

(b)

(©)

and explanation given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing. we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company has been noticed or reported
during the course ol audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We hay > taken into consideration the whistleblower complaints received by the Company during the
year, w hile determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According (o the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and
hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the transactions with
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,2013 where
applicalile and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
Statenients as required by theapplicable Indian accounting standards.

(a) Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion

the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considerced the reports of the internal auditor for the year ended 31 March 2024 furnished

to us;

In our vpinion according (o the information and explanation given to us the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence

provisions ol section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (@) The Compuny is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

Xix.

1934. Accordingly. clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Conipany is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Accordingly. clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) The comipany is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions. 2010). Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Accordiie to the information and explanation provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does

not have any CIC. Accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediaich preceding linancial year,

There i1+ been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Accordingly,
clause “(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and M.nagement plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothin /' has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the Jate of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
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at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. A) Based on our audit procedure and as per the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has only ongoing projects i.e. there are no other than ongoing projects.

B) Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the unspent amount by the Company towards CSR as on 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs
14.87 Lakhs. out of which the Company spent Rs 6.42 Lakh in April 2024 and the balance amount of
Rs. 8.45 Lakh has been transferred to special account in compliance with the provisions of Section
135(6) of the Act as on 30 April 2024.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountunts
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Vivek Raheja
Partner
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 24094781 BIKAGRX9456

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report in terms ol Dircctions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of
the Companies Act’2015 for the financial year 2023-2024

1.

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If
yes, the implications of processing accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, all the accounting
transactions are routed through IT system (i.e. Tally software in Head Office and SAGE 300
ERP/HIS/IDS software in 11DL Suites) except the demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices
issued to tenants. Demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices issued to tenants are usually sent
through MS-Office.

We have neither been informed nor we have come across during the course of audit any accounting
transactions hayving an impact on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications
which have been processed outside the IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a icader to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a government company,
then this dircction is also applicable for statutory auditor of Lender Company).

During the year, there is no instance of any restructuring of any existing loan or cases of waiver/write-
off of debtw/loans/interest ete. made by a lender to the Company.

Whether (unds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central /State
Government or ils agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation.
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We have been informed that the Company has neither received, nor any such funds are receivable by
the Company for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies for the financial
year 2023-24.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Number: S07971C

Vivek Raheja \
Pariner
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 1 BIK AGRX9450

Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024
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Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report in terms of Sub-directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5)
of the Companics Act’2013 for the financial year 2023-24

1.

Investmenits:

Whether the ttles of ownership in respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures etc. are available in
physical/demat torm and these, in aggregate, agree with the respective amounts shown in the Company’s
books of accounts? I not. details may be stated.

The company invested Rs. 75 Crores in Bonds issued by IFCI Limited. The possession of these bonds
is in demat form and the same has been shown in the Company’s books of accounts under the head of
investmen( in asset side of the balance sheet.

Loans:

In respect ol provisioning requirement of all restructured, rescheduled, renegotiated loan-whether a system
of periodical assessment of realizable value of securities available against all such loans is in place and
adequate provision has been created during the year? Deficiencies in this regard, if any, may be suitably
commented upon along with financial impact.

The Company has neither granted any Loans during the year nor does the Company have any such
outstanding Loans as on 31-03-2024,

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accouniainty
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Vivek Raheja

Partner

Membership Numbui: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 1 BK AGRX9456
Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024



Annexure - D to the Auditors” Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s IFCI Infrastructure Development
Limited (“the Company™) as ol 31" March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company lor (he year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s maragement is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control statcd in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘1CALI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of equate internal linancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
officient conduct v! ils business. including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection ol fratids and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation ol reliable [ihancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility i 10 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidanee Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be
prescribed under sec ion TH3(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indi:. Ihose Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform th audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting v a- established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves nerforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporiing imcluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk thiat o material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of ¢ risks ol material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Cornpany s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,.

Meaning of Intcru: | i‘inancial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intern nancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external
purposes in accordiice with aeperally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
1) pertain o the maintenance ol records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and disposi: osis ol the assels ol the company;
2) provide reasnable assurance (hat transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
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financial stitements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors ol the company: and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the iihesent limitations ol internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improjier management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also. projections o any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subjcct to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such initernal linancial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accounicinly
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

=

Vivek Raheja
Partner
Membership Numbor: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 | BRAGRX9456

Place: New Deihi
Date: 19 June 2024
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 {IN)

BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024
) { Rin Lakhs)
Partlculars Note No. As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
ASSETS
1. Non - Current Assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 2 15,376.15 15,699.00
b. Investment property 3 - 710.72
¢. Goodwill 4 - :
d. Other Intangible Assets 5 8.23 20.53
e. Financial Assets - -
i. Investments 6 11,551.78 13,756.03
ii. Loans 7 763.54 696.02
iii. Others 8 3,881.07 2,481.86
31,580.76 33,364.16
2. Current Assets
a. Inventories 9 6,966.28 7,145.77
b. Financial Assets - -
i. Trade Receivables 10 106.14 225.62
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 11 5,095.66 6,039.03
fii. Bank Balance other than (ii) above 12 6,805.54 5,959.28
iv, Loans 13 - -
v. Others 14 1,523.15 990.63
c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 1,057.07 964.00
d. Other Current Assets 16 351.69 337.05
21,905.52 21,661.38
TOTAL ASSETS 53,486.29 55,025.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 17 42,709.92 42,709.92
b. Other Equity 18 8,082.98 9,579.14
50,792.91 52,289.07
2. Non - Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 19 - -
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 20 0.00 1.02
b. Provisions 21 471.14 503.83
c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 944,72 897.69
d. Other Non - Current Liabilities 23 - -
1,415.85 1,402.54
3. Current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Trade Payables 24 141.58 110.50
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 25 369.01 392.41
b. Other Current Liabilities 26 758.19 800.44
c. Provisions 27 8.74 30.58
1,277.53 1,333.94
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 53,486.29 55,025.54
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1to 59
As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

{Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Nidhl Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

2

{Sachikanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Pooja Van)ani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

(% In Lakhs)
particulars Note No. For the year ended 31st |For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income
Revenue from Operations 28 1,782.89 2,066.99
Other Income 29 2,114.37 1,974.84
Total Income (A) 3,897.26 4,041.83
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 30 317.07 404.59
Employee benefit expenses 31 608.27 592.46
Finance Costs 32 - 0.10
Net Loss on Fair Value changes 33 204.10 -
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 34 307.58 381.97
Other Expenses ' 35 1,107.58 953.57
Total Expenses (B) 2,544.61 2,332.68
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A - B) 1,352.65 1,709.14
Exceptional Items 36A - (63.24)
Profit / (Loss) before tax 1,352.65 1,645.91
Less: Tax Expense
1. Current Tax 39 307.45 281.83
2. Deferred Tax 53 45.86 33.00
3. MAT Credit Entitlement - (281.83)
4. Income Tax for Earlier Years = E
Profit / (Loss) for the period from continulng operations, net of tax 999.34 1,612.91
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax) - -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (C) 999.34 1,612.91
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A. i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 36
a. Acturial Gain / Loss 4.20 (5.95)
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not to be reclassified to
res profit or loss 1.17 (1.65)
Other Comprehenslve Income, net of tax (D) 3.03 (4.29)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (C + D) 1,002.37 1,608.61
Earning per equity share (for continulng and discontinuing operations) 37
1. Basic (in Rs.} 0.23 0.38
2. Diluted {in Rs.) 0.23 0.38

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 507971C

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

Sd/-

Sd/-

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

(Nidhi Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Y

Sd/-
(Sachikanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Pooja Vanjani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G 01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

{% In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st |For the year ended 31st March
March 2024 2023
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tatal Comprehensive Income before Income Tax from
Continuing Operations 1,356.85 1,639.96
Discontinuing Opsrations = -
Proflt before Income Tax Including ¢ Inupd op i 1,356.85 1,639,96
Adjustments For ;
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 307.58 381.97
Other Comprehensive Income {4.20) 5,95
Interest Income classified as Investing Cash Flows (173.27) (1,605.33)
Income from Investment Property classifled as Investing Cash Flows - .
Dividend Income classified as Flnancing Cash Flows -
Non - Cash Interest Income {68.53) {60.35)
Non - Cash Finance Costs . 0.10
Non - Cash Deferred Income - (221.49)
Net Gain / Loss on fair value changes 204.10 -
Operating Profit before warking capltal changes 1,622.53 140.80
Change in operating assets and liabllities, net of effects from purchase of controlled entlties and
sale of subsidiaries : -
Decrease / (Increase) : Financial Assets {413.05) {141.41)
Decrease / {Increase) : Inventorles 179.50 243,47
Decrease / {Increase) : Current Tax Assets {93.06) {86.73)
Decrease / {Increase) : Other Current Assets {14.64) 91,12
Increase / (Decrease) : Financial Liabilltles 7.68 (323.44)
Increase / (Decrease) : Provisions (50.33) 11.53
Increase / (Decrease) : Other Current Llabillties {42.25) {0.77}
Cash Generated from Operations 1,196,37 (65.44)
Income Taxes Paid {307.45) -
Net Cash Inflow / (outflow} from Operating Actlvities (A} 888.92 {65.44)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income from Deposits & Bonds 173.27 1,605.33
Bank deposits with maturity over 3 months but less than 12 months (846.26) 2,819,04
Bank deposits with maturity over 12 months {1,399.21) {1,584.02)
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment {0.64) {20.10)
Purchase of Intanglble Assets (0.12) E
Purchase / Maturity of Tax Free Bonds 2,000.15 -
Rental Income from Investment Property - .
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 739.05 17.08
Investment in SAGE Fund - {100.00)
Net Cash Inflow / {outflow] from Investing Actlvities B} 666.24 2,737.33
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interim Dividend Received a
Interim Dividend Paid {2,498.,53)
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid -
Buy-back of Equity Shares
Premium paid on buy-back of Equity Shares -
Tax paid on buy-back of Equity Shares -
Repayment of 9.7% Non-Convertible Bonds *
Finance Costs =
Net Cash Inflow / [outflow) from Financing Activitles © (,2,498.53% -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+B+C) (943.37) 2,671.89
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the vear 6,039.03 3,367.14
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D} 5,095.66 6,039.03
Reconclliation of Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the end of the year
Cash on Hand 1.65 179
Cheques / Drafts on Hand - -
!Balances in Current / Savings Accounts with Banks 80.42 69.06
Balances in Deposit Accounts with maturity less than 3 months 5,013,58 5,968.18
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the vear 5,095.66 6,039.03
Out of (D), signiflcant cash and cash equlvalent balances held by the entity that are not avallable
for use - -
Non Cash Financing and Investing Actlvities 68.53 281.74
Summary of Significant Aecounting Policies and Other Explanatory information in Notes 1 to 59
As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th Aprll 2024
Place : New Delhl

{Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sd/-
{Nidhi Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

”~

5

{Sachikanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
{Pooja Vanjani}
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY



A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March 2024

(R In Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of

the reporting period

Share Capltal Issued
during the year

Share Capltal redeemed
durlng the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting perlod

Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Balance as at 31st March, 2024

42,709.92
42,709.92

42,709.92
42,709.92

B. OTHER EQUITY

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus

Other Comprehensive income [(OCl)

Capltal Redemption
Reserve

Retalned Earnings

Remeasurement of
Defined Beneflt Plans

Others

Total

Balance as at 1st April 2022

Changes In Accounting Policy / Prior Period Errors
Profit for the perlod

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of
taxes)

Changes in Equity due to Lease Extension

Interim Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Balance at 31st March, 2023

Changes in Accounting Policy / Prior Period Errors
Profit for the period

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of
taxes)

Changes in Equity due to Lease Extension

Interim Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Balance at 31st March, 2024

6,812.91

1,127.41

30.20

7,970.53

1,612.91

(4.29)

1,612.91
(4.29)

6,812.91

2,740.32

25.91

9,579.14

999.34

(2,498.53)

3.03

999.34
3.03

(2,498.53)

6,812.91

1,241.13

28.94

8,082.98

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 507971C

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sd/-
{Nidh! Agarwal}
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Sd/-
(Sachlkanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Pooja Van]ani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (“the Company”) is a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013
which was incorporated on October 10, 2007. The Company has been primarily engaged in the activities relating to
Real Estate Project Advisory and Execution, promotion, construction and development of Commercial and
Residential Complexes and Serviced Apartments of its own as well as under joint participatory agreements with
others.

The hospitality project of the company under the brand name ‘IIDL Suites’, Service Apartments located at Mayur
Vihar has commenced its commercial operations from 1st of October, 2011.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared by the Company
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard.

Further, the financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 (the Act).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in
these financial statements.

1.2 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in INR and rounded off to the

nearest two decimals, except where otherwise indicated.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 (IN)

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost

convention, except for the following material items:

* Financial assets at FVTOCI that is measured at fair value

¢ Financial instruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value

* Net defined benefit (asset) / liability - fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit

obligation

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any

costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes
non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and

installation of the respective assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed / retired from active use are derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar new
parts / inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection component
was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 (IN)

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works / cost — plus contracts where final settlement of
bills with contractors is yet to be affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to
necessary adjustments in the year of final settlement.

Spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which meets the recognition criteria of
Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings that are held for long-term rental
yields and/or for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use. Investment properties
include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation.
On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Method of Depreciation used is Straight Line Method and the useful life of the asset taken is 60
years.

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Investment
Properties (if any) as per previous GAAP to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Government licenses essential for the company’s operations and having a validity of over one year
are initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation calculated on the

basis of remaining validity period.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007GOI1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 (IN)

Depreciation / Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the Straight-Line Method over their estimated useful life as prescribed
under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on Management assessment of useful life, if
lower than what is prescribed under the schedule. Depreciation is calculated on pro — rata basis,
including the month of addition and excluding the month of sale / disposal. Leasehold improvements
are amortised over the underlying lease term on a straight-line basis. Residual value in respect of
items of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property are considered as 5% of the cost.
Property, Plant and Equipment costing less than Rs. 5000/- individually are charged to the statement
of Profit & Loss Account in the year of their purchase itself.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible Assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and
having a useful life lasting with that of the equipment have been capitalized with the cost of
computer. Software carrying an identifiable utility of at least five years is amortized on a straight-line
basis over a period of five years from the date put into use. Software with limited edition / period
utility i.e. requiring annual revision is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of
purchase. Government licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of their validity.

De — Recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-
recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment or investment property is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets recognised as of the transition date measured
as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date as

perind AS 101.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007GO0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON — FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non — financial assets (other
than assets held for sale and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. The 'recoverable amount' of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. 'Value in use' is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent

that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily
through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell with gains
and losses on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held for sale, assets are

no longer amortised, depreciated or impaired.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost. The cost comprises
price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost. On each reporting date, consequent
upon existence of any external or internal indication to impairment, the impairment loss shall be
recoghised as difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation
of inventories at the yearend is taken as physically verified value and certified by the management.

Inventory of real estate business comprise of —

i. Building / Residential Complex, Built-up floor space acquired / purchased for development and / or
sale / resale and other removable / disposable assets existing thereon. These are valued at lower of
cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all considerations / costs which
are attributable to purchase / acquisition, and other expenses incurred specifically thereto.

ii. Land Bank — It consists of asset purchased by the Company that it intends to develop later on into
residential / commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value whichever is less. However,
it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more than one
year.

iii. Work in Progress — Work-in-Progress includes construction work in progress and unsold portion of
completed Real Estate Projects. Increase / decrease in Work-in-Progress is accounted for as Income
or Expenditure for the year, as the case may be. Valuation of Work-in-Progress including unsold
portion of reality project is being done on basis of actual cost and overheads incurred which are
directly attributable to project, till completion or net realizable value whichever is less.

iv. Direct Materials, Stores and Spare Parts are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

v. Consumables including Cantering, Shuttering and Scaffolding, Loose Tools, Laboratory Equipment,
empty containers & others are valued on the basis of realizable value, based on the engineering

estimate.

Inventory of hospitality business comprises of closing balance of consumables purchased. FIFO
method is followed for ascertaining the cost price considered for valuation. Closing inventories are
valued at cost or replacement value, whichever is less, after providing for obsolescence and damage.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise Cash in hand, Balances in Bank Account, Remittance in Transit,
Cheques in hand and Demand Deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments
(original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN: U45400DL2007GO0I1169232

Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110 019 (IN)

LEASES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 116)

The company identifies lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The company checks
for conditions needed to be fulfilled if the contract is to be classified as lease as under:

Identified asset.
Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits
Lessee directs the use

The Company as a Lessee

Vi,

vii.

The company recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases for a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

It then recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

The company measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as
property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities.

The company recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease
liability.

Lease liability = Present value of lease rentals + present value of expected payments at the
end of lease. The lease liability will be amortized using the effective interest rate method.
Lease term = non-cancellable period + renewable period if lessee reasonably certain to
exercise.

Right to use asset = Lease liability + lease payments (advance)-lease incentives to be received
if any initial + initial direct costs + cost of dismantling / restoring etc. The asset will be
depreciated as per Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment.

The Company as a Lessor

The company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards,
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For finance leases, the company derecognizes
the underlying asset and recognizes a net investment in the lease.

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For operating leases, the company
continues to recognize the underlying asset.

Any selling profit or loss is recognized at lease commencement.
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PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES RELATED TO CLAIMS, LITIGATION etc.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions
are discounted. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the

current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Arbitration Awards

Arbitration / Court’s awards along with related interest receivable / payable are, to the extent not
taken into accounts at the time of initiation, are recognized after it becomes decree. Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration, Government of India, is accounted for on finalization of award by the
appellate authority. Interest to / from in these cases are accounted when the payment is probable
which the point is when matter is considered settled by management.

Liquidated Damages

Liquidated Damages / Compensation for delay in respect of clients/ contractors, if any, are accounted
for when payment is probable which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation

whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from retained earnings, net of any related income
tax benefits.

Other components of equity include Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) arising from actuarial gain
or loss on re-measurement of defined benefit liability and return on plan assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners
of the parent are recorded separately within equity. Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any
interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.
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(i)

(i)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Classifications and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or FVTPL, depending on the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the Company’s business model for

managing the financial assets.

Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level, because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is

provided to management. The information considered includes:

* The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the

assets;
* The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its

expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for

managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized;
¢ The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within

that business model) and how those risks are managed.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company applies judgement and considers all the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains any contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the said
assessment, the Company considers prepayment and extension terms, features that modify
consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of the interest rates).

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:
* |t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows.
e The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
less any impairment losses.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:
* It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets.
* The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on said financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and do not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance

sheet.
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Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FvOCl, is classified as at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account.

Investment in equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries /
associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account. However, on initial recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate and is accordingly accounted for.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs."

Measurement Basis

Amortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR
method of discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Fair Valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair
value of a liability reflects it non — performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs.
The valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into

account in pricing a transaction."

1.16.10 De-recognition / Modification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

(A)
(i)

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. The Company also
recognise a liability for the consideration received attributable to the Company’s continuing
involvement on the asset transferred. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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(ii)

(B)
(i)

(ii)
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Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
modification results in de-recognition of the original financial asset and new financial asset is

recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are-amortised over the remaining term of the
modified financial asset by recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in

profit or loss.

If the modification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR and the resulting gainor loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by

recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument."

1.16.11 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.16.12 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTPL. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

» Financial Assets that are not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

e Financial Assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present
value of all cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial asset.

* Financial Assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount
and the present value of estimated cash flows

e Undrawn Loan Commitments — as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that
the Company expects to receive with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI.

1.16.13 Write-off of Financial Assets

1.17

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full} when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write — off. This assessment is
carried out at the individual asset level.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under
the group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on three
years rolling average default rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporting date to
determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The expenses and income in foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing
on the date of transactions / at the forward rate, if booked, for such transaction. Assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies and accrued income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated
into Indian Rupees at the rates advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI)
prevailing towards the close of the accounting period. Gains / losses, if any, on valuation of various
assets and liabilities are taken to Statement of Profit & Loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

i.

vi.

Rental income from Investment Property / Flats held as Inventories is recognized on a straight —
line basis over the period of lease terms.

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the Effective Interest Rate method.
Interest Income from Bank Deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

Income by way of Fees for Project Advisory and Execution services is recorded on accrual basis
as per services rendered pursuant to the specific service agreements.

Revenue from the external project services is recognized based on the Cost-plus method. A fixed
mark-up percentage is added to the cost incurred towards construction and the total is
recognized as revenue. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of work completion
certificate obtained from the engineer/ architect.

Revenue from real estate development of constructed properties is recognized based on the
“percentage of completion method”. Sale consideration as per the legally enforceable
Agreements to Sell entered into is recognized as revenue based on the percentage of actual
project costs incurred to total estimated project cost, subject to following:

Actual cost incurred is not less than 25 percent of the total estimated project cost.

No significant uncertainty exists regarding receipt of consideration from the customers.
In case of overdue, on actual realization basis.

All significant risks and rewards are transferred to the customer.

2 0 o w

Project cost includes cost of land, estimated cost of construction and development of such
properties. The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effect of
any changes in such estimates recognized in the period such changes are determined.
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vii. Revenue from hospitality services is recognized on accrual basis.

a. Selling price is determined on the basis of published rack rate less discount offered to

customers.
b. Income in foreign exchange: The bills for services rendered are raised in Indian Rupees.

The payment received in foreign currency against these bills, is credited and accounted
for at the rate / rates prevalent on the date of receipt of payment. The gains/ losses
arising out of the fluctuation in the exchange rates are accounted for on realization.

viii. Dividend income is recognized at the time the right to receipt is established.

ix. Other items of income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when control of
respective goods or service has been transferred to customer.

X. The company shall recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” as and when any such revenue instance occurs.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends and Dividend Distribution Tax thereon are recognised if and only when the same are
approved by the shareholders in the general meeting and consequently paid to the shareholders.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits include: short — term employee benefits, post —
employment benefits and other long — term employee benefits.

Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid
and as an expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve
months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of
such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement

that has accumulated at the reporting date.
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Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity & Leave Encashment

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement. The company
operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year end. The
obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current costs and the fair value of any plan assets, if any is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method),
which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based
on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation
results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contribution to the plan.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service, interest cost
and re-measurements and the change in defined benefit plan asset is split between interest income
and re-measurements. Changes due to service cost (which is the increase of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in the current period) and net interest
cost / income (which is the change during the period in the defined benefit liability that arises from
the passage of time) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net
defined benefit liability / (asset) which comprise of the below are recognized in other comprehensive
income:

e Actuarial gains and losses;

» The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liability (asset)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax
effects of temporary differences between tax base and book base). It is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity
orin OCI.

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax payable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Minimum
Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and loss. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.
Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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1.22.4 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set —off against the normal tax liability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the
extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period
presented, by restating the opening statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the

shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during
the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportable business segments namely — ‘Real Estate Activities’
comprising of Advisory and Execution Services, Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and
Development of Real Estate Projects and in ‘Hospitality’ provided through Serviced Apartments
under the brand name ‘Fraser Suites’.

ALLOCATION OF COMMON COSTS

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 — “Statement of
Cash Flows”.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance
a. Land 6,228.29 6,228.29
b. Buildings 10,630.46 10,630.46
c. Plant and Equipments 2,114.19 2,118.08
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.90 1,851.24
e, Vehicles 76.90 76.90
f. Others 128.80 118.54
21,026.54 21,023.52
Additions / (Sale) during the period
a. Land
1. Buildings - -
t. Plant and Equipments (7.44) (3.89)
d. Furniture and Fixtures (0.23) (3.34)
e. Vehicles - -
f. Others 0.64 10.25
(7.03) 3.02
Closing Balance
a, Land 6,228.29 6,228.29
b1 Buildings 10,630.46 10,630.46
c. Plant and Equipments 2,106.74 2,114.19
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.67 1,847.90
e. Vehicles 76.90 76.90
f. Others 129.44 128.80
21,019.51 21,026.54
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance
a. Land 32.18 29.13
b. Buildings 1,954,16 1,785.59
t. Plant and Equipments 1,411.23 1,268.52
Note |d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,749.41 1,745.61
No, 2 |# Vehicles 70.80 69.36
f. Others 109.77 99.20
5,327.54 4,997.43
Depreclatlon for the period
a. Land - 3.05
b. Buildings 168.57 168.57
.. Plant and Equipments 140.55 142.71
dl. Furniture and Fixtures 1.89 3.80
e, Vehicles 1.43 1.43
f, Others 3:37 10.56
315.82 330.13
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreclation
a. Land 32.18 32.18
b. Buildings 2,122.74 1,954,16
. Plant and Equipments 1,551.78 1,411.23
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,751.30 1,749.41
e. Vehicles 72.23 70.80
f. Others 113,13 109.77
5,643.36 5,327.54
Net Carrying Value of Property, Plant and Equipment (A)
a. Land 6,196.12 6,196.12
b. Buildings 8,507.72 8,676.29
. Plant and Equipments 554.96 702.96
d. Furniture and Fixtures 96.37 98.49
e Vehicles 4.60 A.11
f. Others 16.30 19.03
TOTAL 15,376.15 15,699.00
Out of (A) above, leasehold property, plant and equipment
a. Right of use of Land on Finance Lease = (5.72)

a4+




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(X in Lakhs)
Note
o Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
INVESTIMENT PROPERTY
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance
3. Flats 929.40 929.40
Additions / (Sale) durlng the period
a. Flats -731.37
Closing Balance
a. Flats 198.02 929.40
Note [Accumulated Depreclation
No. 3 |Opening Balance
. Flats 218.68 180.09
Depreciation for the period
a. Flats -20.65 38.59
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
a. Flats 198,02 218.68
Net Carrying Value of Investment Property
a. Flats 710.72
(% in Lakhs)
Note
- Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
GOODWILL
Note |Goodwill
No. 4
(% in Lakhs)
Note
. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance

a. Computer Software

b, Licenses and Franchises

Additions / (Sale) during the period
a. Computer Software
b. Licenses and Franchises

Closing Balance
a. Computer Software
b. Licenses and Franchises

Accumulated Amortization
Note |opening Balance

No. 5 |a. Computer Software

b. Licenses and Franchises

Amortization for the period
a, Computer Software
b. Licenses and Franchises

Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
A, Computer Software
h. Licenses and Franchises

Net Carrying Value
a. Computer Software
b. Licenses and Franchlses

TOTAL

26.19 26.19
60.00 60.00
86.19 86.19
0.12
0.12
26.31 26.19
60.00 60.00
86.31 86.19
24,90 23.63
40.76 28.77
65.66 52.40
0.40 1.27
12.02 11.99
12.42 13.25
25.30 24.90
52.78 40.76
78.08 65.66
1.01 1.29
7.22 19.24
8.23 20,53
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note .
No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
a. Investments in Equity Instruments
i. Subsidiaries
1. [IDL Realtors Private Limited 2,995.32 2,995.32
ii. Others
1. Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited 450.73 654.83
2. Other Entities 100.00 100.00
3,546.05 3,750.15
b. Investments in Preference Shares
i. Subsidiaries
1. lIDL Realtors Private Limited 505.73 505.73
Note 505.73 505.73
No. 6 ¢. Investments in Debentures / Bonds
1. IFCI Limited - Bonds 7,500.00 7,500.00
2. IFCI Limited - Tax Free Bonds = 2,000.15
7,500.00 9,500.15
11,551.78 13,756.03
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 11,551.78 13,756.03
Market Value of Unquoted Investments 11,551.78 13,756.03
Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments 399.70 195.60

(X in Lakhs)

Note
No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits
i. Secured, considered good

696.02

i. Unsecured, considered good 763.54
Note iii. Doubtful . :
No. 7 763.54 696.02
b. Loans to related parties -
c. Other loans - =
763.54 696.02
(X in Lakhs)
Note i
Kio: Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Sundry Deposits 647.47 647.18
Note [Finance Lease Receivable . c
No. 8 |Bank Deposits with maturity more than 12 months 3,233.60 1,834.68
3,881.07 2,481.86

EE




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
INVENTORIES
a. Raw Materials 9.89 6.55
Out of (a) above, goods in transit » =
9.89 6.55
b. Work - in - Progress 1,321.23
Out of (b) above, goods in transit S s
E 1,321.23
¢. Stores and spares 7.20 8.17
Out of (c) above, goods in transit = 3
7.20 8.17
d. Others
i. Land 5,759.88 4,518.27
ii. Land on lease cum sale basis 1,177.24 1,276.85
iii. Consumables 12.06 14.69
6,949.19 5,809.82
6,966.28 7,145.77
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
a. Secured considered good
b. Unsecured considered good
i. Due over six months 184.67 216.00
ii. Other Trade Receivables 39.09 72.54
223.76 288.54
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 117.61 62.92
Net Unsecured considered good 106.14 225.62
106.14 225.62
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a. Balances with Banks 80.42 69.06
80.42 69.06
b. Cheques and Drafts on Hand
¢. Cash on Hand 1.65 1.79
1.65 1.79
d. Others
i. Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5,013.58 5,968.18
5,013.58 5,968.18
5,095.66 6,039.03




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)

Note No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN (iii)

Note |Deposits with maturity between 3 and 12 months 6,805.54 5,959.28
No. 12 6,805.54 5,959.28
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits - -
b. Loans to related parties -
¢. Other loans
Note i. Doubtful 4.49 0.35
No. 13 4.49 0.35
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 4.49 0.35
Net Other Loans - -
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Note a. Interest Accrued on Deposits 888.84 356.81
b. Interest Accrued on Bonds 634.32 633.82
No. 14 1,523.15 990.63
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TAX ASSETS
a. Advance Tax - -
Note b. Tax Deducted at Source 802.17 625.12
¢. MAT Credit Entitlement 836.75 836.75
No. 15 Less : Provision for Tax 581.86 497.87
1,057.07 964.00

Note: Provision for tax, TDS, TCS, reconciliation process is under way.




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GO0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)

Note No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Note

OTHERS CURRENT ASSETS
a. Capital Advances

b. Advances Other than Capital Advances

Other Advances 351.69 337.05
No. 16 351.69 337.05
c. Others - -
351.69 337.05
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
EQUITY
Authorized Share Capital
100,00,00,000 (Previous year - 100,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
Issued Share Capital
42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
Note i
Subscribed Share Capital
No. 17 42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
Paid Up Share Capital
42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
TOTAL 42,709.92 42,709.92
|0 M
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Closing Balance

(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER EQUITY
Share application money pending allotment 4 5
Equity component of other Financial Instruments = =
Note [Reserve and Surplus
No. 18 [Capital Redemption Reserve 6,812.91 6,812.91
Retained Earnings 1,241.13 2,740.32
Other Comprehensive Income 28.94 25.91
8,082.98 9,579.14
Note No. 18 (i)
Capital Redemption Reserve (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Appropriations during the year - -
Closing Balance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Note No. 18 (ii)
Retained Earnings (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 2,740.32 1,127.41
Net Profit for the period 999.34 1,612.91
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings -
Interim Dividend paid to Equity Shareholders -2,498.53 =
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - -
Closing Balance 1,241.13 2,740.32
Note No. 18 (iii)
Other Comprehensive Income (X in Lakhs)
| Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
'Opening Balance 25.91 30.20
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obligations, net of taxes 3.03 -4.29
28.94 2591

1| T ——————— e,



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(% in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Note a. Preference Shares - =
b. Bonds / Debentures - =
No. 19 N =
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a. Retention Money - -
Note
b. Finance Lease Liability 0.00 1.02
No. 20 0.00 1.02
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provision for employee benefits
i. Gratuity 91.37 86.05
ii. Leave Encashment 28.31 28.81
Note 119.68 114.86
No. 21 b. Others
i. Provision for Expense 351.46 388.97
471.14 503.83
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
a. Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of
i. Due to depreciation 393.34 365.09
ii. Others 658.23 639.45
Note 1,051.57 1,004.54
No. 22 |Less:
i. Others 106.85 106.85
106.85 106.85
944.72 897.69
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(Rin Lakhs)

Note No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Deferred Income

Note
b. Others N
No. 23 i i
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
Note a. Micro and Small enterprises 0.40 4.87
b. Others 141.19 105.63
No. 24 141.58 110.50
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note |Other Payables 369.01 392.41
No. 25 369.01 392.41
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
| a. Advances Received 689.78 764.68
Note |b. Other Advances 40.11 27.91
No. 26 [c. Statutory dues payable 28.30 7.85
758.19 800.44
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provisions for employee benefits
i. Gratuity 5.82 5.42
ifote ii. Leave Encashment 2.92 3.05
No. 27 b. Others - 22.11
8.74 30.58

\0 b



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a. Sale of Properties 53.55 169.60
b. Sale of Services 32.20 31.79
Note ¢. Room Rent 1,456.18 1,630.71
d. Proceeds from Restaurant 177.14 215.12
No. 28 e. Revenue from external projects = =
f. Other Operating Revenues 63.83 19.76
1,782.89 2,066.99
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No; s March 2024 March 2023
OTHER INCOME
a. Interest Income
i. Earned and Accrued on Deposits 956.52 710.03
il. Earned and Accrued on IFCI 9.7% RRB Bonds 728.00 727.50
iil. Earned and Accrued on Tax Free Bonds 167.80 167.80
iv. Others 68.53 60.35
Note 1,920.85 1,665.68
b. Dividend Income - -
No. 29 c. Deferred Income - Land - 221.49
d. Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 122.57
e. Provision Reversal - -
f. Miscellaneous Income 70.95 87.67
193.52 309.16
2,114.37 1,974.84
(% in Lakhs)
e Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
’ March 2024 March 2023
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
a. Opening Stock 7,116.36 7,344.72
Note b. Purchases 137.84 176.23
7,254.20 7,520.95
No. 30 Less: Closing Stock 6,937.13 7,116.36
317.07 404.59
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No by March 2024 March 2023
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Note |* Salaries and Wages 571.87 559.36
b. Staff Welfare 36.40 33.10
No. 31 608.27 592.46




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCE COST
a. Fair Value Changes in Equity Investments 5 :
Note
b. Other Interest Costs - 0.10
No. 32 - 0.10
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
flote Nos Farticuiers March 2024 March 2023
NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value though Profit and Loss
Note |a. On Investments 204.10
No. 33 |b. Others .
204.10 -
(X in Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
a. Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Note i. Property, Plant and Equipment 315.82 330.13
ii. Investment Property -20.65 38.59
No. 34 b. Amortization on Intangible Assets 12.42 13.25
307.58 381.97

03




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
{Xin Lakhs)
Note No. Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Repairs and Maintenance
i. Building 50.72 41.71
ii. Others 38.08 33,57
88.80 75.28
b. Rent Paid (including Lease Rent) 17.64 63.74
c. Rates and Taxes 92.44 65.12
d. Travelling and Conveyances 5.28 6.27
e. Legal And Professional Expenses 62.45 25.70
f. Security Expenses 85.72 89.63
g. Auditors's Remuneration 2.27 2.00
h. Insurance Charges Paid 10.55 13.39
i. Training & Development Expenses - 8.50
j. Telephone & Postage Expenses 3.98 7.52
k. Laundry & Cleaning 23.05 16.22
Note R Telévis?ion & Musit.: 0.48 1.20
m. Printing and Stationery 5.44 5.75
No. 35 n. Directors Fee 2.86 3.62
0. Fuel & Gas 48.57 61.73
p. Commission & Brokerage 140.96 135.95
g. Marketing and License 8.08 5.48
r. Advertisement and Exhibition Expenses 1.56 3.35
s. Compensation-21st Milestone Project 18.74 -
t. Vehicle Running & Maintenance 0.35 0.90
u. Electricity & Water Expenses 255.79 268.73
v. Provision for Interest & Expenses 22.11 2211
w. Provision for Service Tax Cenvat 36.88 -
x. Provision for Doubtful Debts 56.21 -
y. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 24.86 24.73
z. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 12.57 14.04
aa. Other Miscellaenous Expenses 79.94 32.61
1,107.58 953.57
(X In Lakhs)
Note o Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
] March 2024 March 2023
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT AND LOSS
a. Acturial Gain / (Loss) 4,20 -5.95
Note 4.20 -5.95
No. 36 |Less: Tax on Above 1.17 -1.65
3.03 -4.29
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No. Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Exceptional Items
Note ||;apility written Back - .
No. Provision Reversal -
36A
Provision Reversal - -63.24
Total - -63.24
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

Note No. 37 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders {in Rs.) 1,002.37 1,608.61
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 4,270.99 4,270.99
Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 0.00 0.00
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.) 0.23 0.38
Note No. 38 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 | March 2023
Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
Certification and Other Services 0.77 0.50
Travelling and Out of Pocket expenses 0.02 -
TOTAL 2.28 2.00
Note No. 39 - TAX EXPENSES
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Current Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 307.45 281.83
b. In respect of Previous Years - -
307.45 281.83
Deferred Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 47.03 31.34
TOTAL 354.48 313.18
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 40 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportable business segment namely ‘Real Estate Activities’ comprising Advisory and Execution Services,
Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and Development of Real Estate Projects and in "Hospitality' comprising of Serviced
Apartments under the brand name 'lIDL Suites'. Hence the segment wise disclosure as required by Ind AS - 108 is as under:

(% in Lakhs)
. Divislon
Particulars - Consolidated Total
Real Estate Hospitallty

SEGMENT REVENUE
Sales -
Domestic 85.75 1,697.14 1,782.89
Export - - -
Inter Segment Sales - - -
Other Income 2,080.90 33.46 2,114.37
Total Revenue 2,166.65 1,730.61 3,897.26
SEGMENT EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 855.07 1,381.95 2,237.03
Depreciation & Amortization Allocated (8.58) 316.17 307.58
Operating Profit 1,320.16 32.48 1,352.65
Interest Cost Allocated - - -
Profit Before Exceptional item and Tax 1,320.16 32.48 1,352.65
OTHER INFORMATION
Segmental Assets 36,893.07 16,593.22 53,486.29
Segmental Liabilities 36,893.07 16,593.22 53,486.29
Exceptional Iltems - - -

Note No. 41 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

i. Name of the related parties and description of relationship -

A. Enterprises having significant influence over the company

IFCI Limited - Holding Company

IIDL Realtors Private Limited - Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

B. Enterprises having related party dealings with the company
Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited - Investment in Equity Shares
IFCI Factors Limited - Controlled by Parent Company

IFCI VENTURE CAPITAL FUNDS LIMITED - Controlled by Parent Company
C. Key Managerial Personnel (Directors during the FY 2022 - 23 and FY 2023 - 24)
Mr. Prasoon : cessation w.e.f. 19/09/2022

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal : cessation w.e.f. 19/09/2022

Mr. Sachikanta Mishra : appointed w.e.f. 07/10/2022

Mr. Vijay Kumar Tyagi : appointed w.e.f. 26/04/2023

Mr. Debashis Gupta : cessation w.e.f. 20/12/2023

Mr. Rahul Bhave : appointed w.e.f. 26/12/2023

Mr. Vijay Kumar Deshraj : w.e.f. 02/09/2022 (MD till 18/01/2024)

Mr. Amrendra Kumar : appointed w.e.f. 18/01/2024

Mr. Manoj Mittal — appointed w.e.f. 15/06/2021

Mr. Venugopal K Nair : 25/08/2018

Dr. Sumita Rai : 14/05/2018

Mr. Vishal Pandey (CFO) : till 26.05.2023

Ms, Nidhi Agarwal (CFO) : appointed w.e.f. 13.07.2023

Ms. Tannu Sharma (CS) : till 15.09.2023

Ms. Meenakshi Mittal (CS) : w.e.f. 23.10.2023 to 15.03.2024

Ms. Pooja Vanjani (CS) : appointed w.e.f. 26.03.2024

AR




te69 = £€69 : PIAIDI9Y sJuBWIISINGUIEY
£€'69 - €€°69 - S9XE] JOJ Spew sjuawied
SNOLDDVSNYYL ¥IHLO
00°00T 00°00T - pung 39vS 4DAI
. - = - spuog 9314 xe} s,[D41
00°00S°Z - - 00°00S‘2 spuog s, 1041
- = - = SuipueisinQ syunowy 230
S13SSv
- - > = D41 Aq panssi spuog
S3Lavn
0 ra4) (s;uawasinquiay) 210 Ja3eM 8 AdI33 ‘suoydsa |
06'€T - = 06°'€T (1S9 10 BAISNIX3) SaSIWRI O JuaY
. . ] g uoneindsp
€736 o : Ev'sg uo ye1s 104 (syausq Suipnjput) uoneiaunway
SISN3dX3
] s (sL s uoneindsp
£S5 uo yeis 104 ( sugauaq Suipnpour) uoneIBUNWSY
- - - - {PaAI12331 SJUBWBSINqUIIBY) D13 J31BM B Ainss3
99 = 99 = BWIodU| |euay
. < = ) spuog
SR 08'£91 99J4 Xe| Uf JUSWISBAU| UO PINIIIE PUB PAUILS 1S3UBIU|
. - - . spuog
Sjee 0s°LeL $,1041 Ul JUSWISIAUI UO P3NJIDE pue PBUIRS ISI1U|
JINOINI
- = - - sjusWIsaAU| ANnb3 Uo PaARIAY pusSpINg WLIEIU]
£S'867'C - > €5'867°C siapjoyaseys Aunb3 o1 pred puspiag wiLia3u)
JINVNIA
a3tinn A3l SaNnd (panwi] a3eAlld sioyeay (panwiry p41)
felog uoldesuelj Jo ainjeN
SYOLOVH 124l | TVLIAYD JUNLNIA 1241 | T1ani) Auedwo) Arelpisqng Auedwo) Suipjoy
(syyequry)

{vZ - €207 AJ] AUBALIOD 343 JoA0 souanjjul JUBDJIUSIS SUINEY So511d133U3 31 SUO[DESUES] jospieiag

vc0c Ydsie istg e se

133HS FIDNVIVE 40 L4Vd ONINYOL SILON

(NI) 6TO OTT - 1U|2Q M3N ‘92€|d NIYIN T9 “43MO] |D4] 400}4 Y3/ - YJO "p3ay
Z€T69TI09£0021A00VSYN : NID
@3 LIANIM INIINDOT1IAIA FHNLONYLSYHANI DI

I\ >



€C°SL - €Sl > PBAIDIRY SIUBWIISINQUIISY
€T'SL - €T'S/ = SOXE] 104 pew syuswAied
SNOILOVSNVYL H3IHLO
00°00T 00°00T PUN4 39VS 4DAI
ST°000C - . S1°000°C spuog 3314 xe] s,124|
007005, - - 00°00S°L spuog s,04l
= = - - SuipuelsinQ sunowy [e10].
S13SSV
- - - = 1041 Aq panssi spuog
satLniavi
10 =3 = 10 (siuswasinquiiay) 213 Ja3epn 13 Ad13d9|3
£6'8S - = €685 {159 Jo dAIsN|dX3) S3sIWRId JO JUdY
. - - ASWAS uoneindsp
e uo Je3s 1ojJ (S1ysuaq Buipnpoul) uojessunway
SISNIIX3
. = 76’9 or'0 uoneindsp
o uo Jjels Joj { suyausq Suipnjour) uopeiaunwiay
- - - - (paa12234 syuswssinquuisy) 219 J31ep 8 A101103)3
ve'8 - ve'8 - = swoouj |ejuay
082917 ) = 08'£9T spuog
9314 X U] JUSWISIAU| UC PINIIIE PUB PAUIED 1SB431U|
= - . spuog

0S'221 0S°L2L .,_u
S,1241 Ul JUBLUISSAUL UO PINJIJE PUB pauLes 153131U|
SIWOINI
- - - - sjuawisanu] Ainb3 uo panRday puUSpPIAIg W]
- - - - siap|oyaseys Aunb3 o1 pied puapiaig wiEi)
JONVNI4

S, QILINIT SaNNd (panwi 3)eALd sioyjeay {pauwny 141) P
TVLIdYD JUNLNIA 1241 | 1a11) Auedwo) Asegpisqns Auedwo) 3uipjoy ; ¥
(swieury)

(€T - zZzoe Ad) Auedwod 3gj iano @aUuanjjul ur_muu—__._mmw M_..-_)mr_ sa2sudI3jus YIIMm SUDIIDESUED] o sjielsg "n

20T Ydaie IsTE e se

133HS IDNVIVE 40 LHVd DNINYOL SILON

(NI) 6TO OTT - 1Y[2Q M3N ‘32€|d NIYIN T9 4OMO] [I4| “100|4 Y1/ - 92140 "PSaYy
Z€269TI0DL0021A00VSYN : NID
AILINIT LNJINOTIAIA TUNLONYISYHANI DI

N2



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
lii. Details of transactions with KMPs during the year
(% in Lakhs)
particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
i. Whole Time Directors / CFO / Company Secretary
a. Short term employee benefits 73.77 72,67
b. Other long term employee benefits 5.25
. Post employment benefits 4,79
d. Others (specify) - .
83.80 72.67
ii. Independent / Nominee Directors
a. Sitting Fees 2.86 3.62
b. Others (Conveyance) 0.12 .
2,98 3.62
86.78 76.29
Note No. 42 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
i. Interest Rate Risk Management
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because company has borrowed funds at fixed interest rates.
ii. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss
{% In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans 763.54 696.02
Other Financial Assets 2,170.63 990.63
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - -
Other Financial Liabilities 0.00 1.02
2,934.16 1,687.67
iii. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at amortised costs
(Tin Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Investments 11,551.78 13,756.03
Trade Receivables 106.14 225.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,095.66 6,039.03
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,039.13 7,793.95
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade Payables 141.58 65.56
Other Financial Liabilities 369.01 428.17
TOTAL 27,303.31 28,308.36
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note No. 43 (i) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(R In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

(A) Claims against Company not acknowledeged as Debts

(B) Bank Guarantees provided

(C) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

(1) On Capital / Revenue Account (net of advances) and not provided for
(D) Export obligations under EPCG Licenses

(E) Contingent Liability towars Income Tax/Gst is as under - -

Note No. 43 (ia) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS INCOME TAX

Forum from where
Assessment Year Amount (Rs. in Lacs) demand pending /
addition Imposed
2012 - 13 63.02 ITAT
2013-14 49,07 ITAT
2014 - 15 98.73 ITAT
2015-16 79.85 CIT(A)
2016 - 17 24,16 ITAT
2017 - 18 58.60 CIT(A)
2018 - 19 73.53 CcpPC
2019-20 134 CPC
2020-21 82,92 CPC
2021-22 232,61 CPC
2022 -23 168.15 CPC

For A.Y. 12-13, 13-14, 14-15 and 16-17, appeal has been filed with Income tax appelate Tribunal. For A.Y. 15-16 and 17-18, the cases are
pending before CIT Appeals. For rest of the cases, rectification under section 154 has been filed with Income Tax Deptt.

Note No. 43 (ib) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS GST

Forum from where
Assessment Year / State Amount (Rs. in Lacs) demand pending /
addition Imposed
2017 - 18 / Delhi 31.08 GST Appealate
2017 - 18/ U.P. 6.81 GST Appealate

For both the above cases, appeal has been filed with GST Deptt.

Note No. 43 {ii)
Against Sonepat Land Regional Provident Fund Commissioner - Il has ordered for the recovery of those defaulted by the earlier company,

i.e. Haryana Sheet Glass Limited (HSGL). A Writ Petition has been filed by the company before High Court of Punjab and Haryana at
Chandigrah against the said order. The Court was of prima facie opinion that proper procedures has not been followed in assessing the
liability. Accordingly, the impugned order has been quashed giving liberty to PF department to decide afresh after following due
procedure. The matter is Sub-judice.

Note No. 43 (iii)
The Company has received a notice from AIG Stamp Ghaziabad, for short payment of stamp duty amounting to Rs. 150.02 Lakhs. The

Honable high court has granted stay in favour of the company & the case is pending for the further hearing.

~

S




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 (iv)

An award dated 25.01.2018 was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal in the arbitration proceedings between M/s Subir Engineering Work(s) Pvt
Ltd. vs. [IDL directing IIDL to pay claimant Rs.768.00 lakhs with interest @ 6% from 27.10.2016 against the total claim of Rs.2118 lakhs
claimed by the Claimant. (The Award includes VAT amount of Rs.309.00 lakhs and security deposit of Rs.272.00 lakhs). IIDL has filed a
petition u/s 34 of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before Hon’ble Delhi High Court against this award. Further, an amount of Rs.
400.00 lakhs has been deposited in the court as per the direction of Honable High Court. The matter is Sub-judice before DHC.

Note No. 43 (v)
The Company is contesting several matters pertaining to its project 21st Milestone Residency at Ghaziabad before Real Estate Regulatory

Authority/Real Estate Appellate Tribunal. In two of the matters i.e. Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Limited and Amit Kumar Shrivastava, an
attachment order was passed by the RERA authority against which the company has filed an appeal before REAT. Wherein as per the
direction of the tribunal, the company has deposited an amount of Rs. 19.51 Lakhs.

Note No. 43 (vi)
The Arbitrator passed an award on 21.02.2022 observing that the Claimant has been found entitled to a total sum of Rs. 442.47 Lakhs as

against sum of Rs. 200.61 Lakhs held recoverable by 1IDL from SBTL under its Counter Claim with respect to amount to be recovered from
M/s SBTL from its retention money for work done by IIDL and Rs. 100 Lakhs towards liquidated damages recoverable under the Counter
Claim of IIDL. Setting off the said amount against the amount found payable to SBTL, SBTL shall be entitled to a sum of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs
only.

Accordingly, an award of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs in favour of SBTL in full and final settlement of all the disputes and the claims and the counter
claims arising from the disputes along with interest on the amount awarded in the favor of SBTL @ 9% p.a from 5.08.2019 till the date the
awarded amount is paid, passed by the Arbitrator. Further, SBTL shall also be entitled to proportionate costs of arbitration proceedings @
Rs. 15 Lakhs. The same paid to SBTL on 26-07-2022. The matter is Subjudice before DHC.

Note No. 44 - Disclosure as per IndAS - 11 Construction Contracts
(i} IDL has constructed a campus for MDI Gurgaon at Jangipur, District - Murshidabad, West Bengal. The financials relating to the contract

are as under:

PARTICULARS Amount (Rs. in Lacs)

Contract

Contract revenue recognized during the year
Contract expenses recognized during the year
Recognized Profits

Total Contract Costs (approx.) -
Amount recoverable from MDI 84.14

-Cost-plus Contract Method has been used to determine the Contract revenue recognized in the period.
-The stage of completion has been determined on the basis of Work Completion Certificate obtained from engineer / architect.

\) 6



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

NOTE NO. 45 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(X in Lakhs)
Quantitative Informatlon In respect of Inventorles
Description Purchases | Sales
CURRENT YEAR
Unl.ts Amount Sts Amount
(Locations) {Locations)

Land & Building - 53.55
Machinery & Equipment - - = -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - -
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores - 52.67 - 177.14

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building - - - 169.60
Machinery & Equipment - -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - 3 B
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores - 50.99 - 215.12

Opening Stock Closing Stock
CURRENT YEAR
o Amount il Amount
{Locatlons) {Locatlons)

Land & Building - 5,795.13 - 6,937.13
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Work-in-Progresss - 1,321.23 -
Consumables and Stores - 22.86 - 19.26

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building - 5,795.13 5,795.13
Machinery & Equipment - - B
Work-in-Progresss 1,549.59 1,321.23
Consumables and Stores - 35.94 22.86

Note:

1. Land and Buildings include units of different areas having varled description for Its types / stage of construction / development, for
which it is not practical to make it individually descriptlve for quantitative disclosure.
2. Consumables & Stores include various F&B, House Keeping, Diesel and Engineering related stores for which It Is not practical to make
it individually descriptive for quantitative disclosure.
3. Work in progress is classified/ included In Land and bullding as there is no WIP In the company.




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 46 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Note No. 46 (I) - Defined benefit plans

Brief Description: A general description of the type of Employee Benefits Plans is as follows:

1. Earned Leave (EL) Benefit

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 33 days per year

Maximum Accumulation - 300 days

Encashment while in service - 100% of earned leave balance, subject to maximum 90 days per year

Encashment on retirement - Maximum upto 300 days or actual accumulation, whichever is less, subject to 30 days balance in the account
of the employee

2. Gratuity

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 15 days salary for each completed year of service
Vesting Period - 5 years of service

Limit - Maximum of INR 20,00,000

Note No. 46 (ii) - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows -
Assumptlons as at March 31, 2024

S. No. Partlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
IIDL - Corporate office
Gratuity
1. Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
2. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs NA NA
4, Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
Leave Encashment
5. Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
6. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
7. Annual increase in costs NA NA
8. Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
1IDL Sultes - A unlt of IIDL
Gratulty
1. Discount rate 7.23% 7.38%
2. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs NA NA
4, Annual increase in salary 8.00% 8.00%
Leave Encashment
5. Discount rate 7.23% 7.38%
6. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
7. Annual increase in costs NA NA
8. Annual increase in salary 8.00% 8.00%

Note No. 46 (iii} - The discount rate is based upon the market yield available on Government bonds at the Accounting date with a term
that matches. The salary growth takes account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor on long term basis. Expected rate
of return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for return over the entire life of the related

obligation.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 47 - Disclosure u/s 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

i. The company has requested information from all its vendors regarding their status of registration in accordance with the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The Act"). Out of the same, vendors who did not send any confirmation have been
taken to be non MSME vendors. Disclosure required under Section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is as under -

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid 0.40 S

as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid as at year

end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers registered under
the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers reglstered under the Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
2006 for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

Note No. 48 - IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

As certified by the management of the company, non financial assets of the company have not been impaired during the year and there is
no indication of a potential impairment loss, therefore the need to make an estimation of recoverable amount does not arise.

Note No. 49 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Ind AS 40)

(1) Amout recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for Investment Propertles

(% In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023

Rental Income 31.79*
Maintenance & Other Reimbursements received -
Direct operating expenses from property generating Rental Income (including
Repair & Maintenance)

- 31.79

Profit from Investment Propertles

The rental income of Rs. 31.79 Lakhs was from varlous properties and not specific to the Investment Property at Vasant Vihar, which was

not leased during the Year 2022-23.
(ii) Leasing Arrangements

No investment property was leased.

(iif) Fair Value

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

Flat at Vasant Vihar, Delhi*

947.70

* Above property was sold during the Financial year 2023-24.




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 49 A

Inventory includes lease hold rights of Financial City Bengaluru property amounting to Rs. 1177.24 lakhs for 4.37 acres of land, lease period
for 2.37 acres of land was expired on 02.11.2021 and for other 2 acres of land, lease period was expired on 12.10.2022, however the same
is extendable under clause no. 23 of the Lease cum Sale agreement entered between IIDL and KIADB. The request letter for renewal of
lease period of 50 acres land has been submitted with KIADB and renewal of the same is under process till the finalization of books of

accounts.

Note No. 50 - ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER PARA 53 OF IndAS 116 - LEASES

i. Additional disclosures required under Para 53 of Ind AS 116 are as under -

(% in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Partlculars
March 2024 March 2023

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset - 3.69
Interest expense on lease liabilities - 0.56
Income from subleasing right-of-use assets - 0.91
Total cash outflow for leases 4.25
Additions to right-of-use assets - -
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of reporting period 0.00 1.02

ii. Right of use assets accounted is for land received from Karnataka Industrial Development Board measuring a total of 50 acres, out of
which, 38.63 acres has been further sub-leased on sub-lease cum sale basis to various financial institutions. Further, an area of 7 acres has
been reserved as area for common facilities development. The company still holds land measuring 4.37 acres as inventories on lease cum

sale basis.

Note No. 51
As per company policy, investment held in Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited was revalued during 2023-24. This has resulted in

impairment of fair value from INR 7.70 per share to INR 5.30 per share leading to net loss on fair value changes of Rs. 204.10 Lakhs.

Note No. 52 - DUES TO SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS
There are no dues payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as defined under Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951 as at

the period end.

Note No. 53 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

(X In Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilitles)
Opening Balance (897.69)
Net Additions (47.03)
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (944.72)

\ 0




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 54 - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE u/s 135 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(% In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Gross Amount required to be spent by the company 24.86 24.73
Amount spent by the company during the year on -
a. Construction / acquisition of assets -
b. Towards PM Cares Funds* 9.99 -
¢. On other purposes - Transferred to IFCI Social Foundation** - 24.73

* Made provision for balance funds i.e. Rs. 14.87 Lakh for CSR, which will betransferred to Unspent A/c.
*Contribution made to IFCI Social Foundation falls under the definition of contribution to a related party (trust controlled by the parent
company) in relation to CSR Expenditure as per Ind AS 24,

Note No. 55 - CHANGE IN USEFUL LIFE OF FIXED ASSETS
As per CAG recommendation, it is to be disclosed that during the Financial Year 2019-20, useful life of Furniture & Fixture at IIDL Suites
(Hospitality Division) has been changed from 10 years to 8 years resulting in depreciation rate impacting the profit of the company by

around Rs. 3.22 Crores.

Note No. 56 - Balance Confirmation

The balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payable are subject to confirmation.

Note No. 57

Previous period figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to the current

ear’s presentation.
y p

Note No. 58

We are using an accouting software which is operated by a third party software service provider for maintaining books of accounts. There
is a feature of Maker checker mechanism. User wise edit log and audit trail is available in the software.

Note No. 59

The notes referred to above from an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per schedule Ill, Annexure 1 (Ratios), Annexure 2
{Debtors Ageing), Annexure 3 (Creditors Ageing) & Annexure 4 (CSR Disclosure) are integral part of the Financial Statements,

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 507971C

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Nidhi Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

V> )

Sd/-
{Sachlkanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sd/-
{Pooja Vanjani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Annexure-4

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Total CSR obligation for the financial year is Rs. 24,86,311/-. IFCI Infrastructure
Development Ltd spent Rs. 9,99,111/- towards PM Cares Funds on 30-03-2024 and made a
provision of Rs. 14,87,200/- towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year —

Amount
Total Amount Spent for Unspent
theFinancial Year- Provision made for unspent amount
2023-24
Amount Rs. Date of Transfer
Rs. 9,99,111/- Rs. 14,87,200/- 31-03-2024

IFCI Infrastructure Development Ltd spent/transfer Rs. 24,72,892/- during the financial
year 2022-23 to IFCI Social Foundation towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year —

Amount
Total Amount Spent for Unspent
theFinancial Year- Balance available to Unspent CSR Account as per Section
2022-23 135(6)
Amount Rs. Date of Transfer
Rs. 94,098/- Rs. 23,78,794/- 28-04-2023
-



VPGS & CO. Chartered Accountants
PR TN ;

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consclitlated v inancial Statements

This revised Independent Auditor - iloport i being issued in suppression of our earlier Independent Auditor's Report dated
27 April 2024, at the instance o Compirodiv and Auditor General (C&AG) of India, the revised report is issued in view
of certain modifications in Lmpiiiie of matler, Report on other Legal & Regulatory Requirements of Independent
Auditor’s Report in terms ol sub sconon (i of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, we confirm that these
do not affect true and fair view and our opinion expressed thereon.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated 11ancial siatements of 1FCl Infrastructure Development Limited (“the Holding Company™)
and its subsidiaries (Holding Compi and its subsidiaries together referred as “the Group™), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 March 2024 the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated statement of changes i1 cquity wnid consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the financial statements. includin: o suninary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (“‘the

consolidated financial statements™)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles uenerally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2024, and its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to point no = o the Iinancial statements regarding lease hold rights for 4.37 acres of land in
respect of financial city Bengaluri e fease period for 2.37 acres of land expired on 2 November 2021 and for the
balance 2 acres of land, lease perivd had cxpired on 12 October 2022. The request letter to renew such lease agreement
is submitted to KIADB and as inoimed o us. the renewal thereof is under process till the date of signing of audit

report. Our opinion is not modilict i respect of this matter.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered ‘Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated linancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the coimalidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Dircctors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
state of affairs, consolidated profit tu~- and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows of the Group in accordance . i:h the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance w it the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of each Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other inceularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that arc eaonabic and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls thut v cperating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presciation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whethic: fue to [raud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financiai statcments, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the Companies included
in the group are responsible for w.scsing cach Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern anct using the woing concern basis of accounting unless the respective management Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors i also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process of each Company.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of (he Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether duc 1o fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
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e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. I'he risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as [raud muy involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under scction 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

e Conclude on the appropriateness ol the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company use of the going
concern basis of accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated financial statements or. il such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a Loing concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated linancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities within the group to express
an opinion on the consolidated linancial stalements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of financials information ol such entities included in consolidated financial statements. We remain solely

responsible for our opinion.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charued with covernance of the Holding company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements ol which we are independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signilicant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with vovernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors” report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

\> 8



Other Matter

We did not audit the Financial Statements ol Subsidiary namely M/s. TIDL Realtors Private Limited, whose Financial
Statements as per Ind AS reflect total asscls of Rs. 19,31,46,039/- as at 31* March’2024 and the total revenue of Rs.
3,72,40,325/- net Cash Flows amounting o Rs. (3,78,79,954/-) for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Ihese Financial Statements have been audited by the other auditor whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of Subsidiary, and our reportin terms o [ sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid Subsidiary is based solely on the report of other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Req uirements

1. As required by the Companics (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in
terms of section 143 (11) vl the Acl. we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required under Scction 143(3) of the Companies Act’2013, we enclose herewith, as per “Annexure-B” and
“Annexure-C” our report for the company on the Directions and Sub-directions respectively, issued by the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India.

3. (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) ol the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of accountas required by law have been kept by the Group so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

¢) The consolidated balance sheet. the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) The provision of Section 164(2) ol the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of disqualifications of directors are not
applicable to the Company being Government Company in terms of notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 5 June
2015 issued by the Ministry ol Corporate affairs;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness ol such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure D”.

(B) With respect to the other matlers to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

=
J
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i The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its
financial positions in its consolidated financial statement — refer Note 43 to the financial statements.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Holding company and its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (cither [rom borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall:

o whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or its Subsidiary Companies incorporated in
India Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

e provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represc wed. that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Holding Company or ity Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise. that (he [olding Company or its Subsidiary Companies incorporated in India shall:
o whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

e provide any guaraniee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriatein the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv.) ()
and (iv.) (b) above. contain any material misstatement.

v. The Interim dividend paid by the Company during the year, in respect of the same declared for the previous year,
is in accordance wilh scction 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of dividend.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks including in reliance with the audit report of the subsidiary,
the Group has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software except in case of subsidiary wherein the respective auditor has commented that In the absence of
report/certificate we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16) of the Act:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding

company and its subsidiarics companies (o its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. ‘Ihe remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197
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of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required
to be commented upon by us

For VPGS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 507971C
A0 Ay,

>
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Vivek Raheja \ \\')% c&t\g

Partner
Membership No. 094781

Place: New Delhi

Date: 19 June 2024
UDIN: 2409478 1 BKAGR W89
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial statements of IFCI
Infrastructure Development Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements. the CARO reports were issued relating to them does not contain any
qualifications or adverse remarks.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 507971C
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Vivek Raheja "\ \\Q';fb.ac&“’

Partner
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 24094781 BKAGRW894 |
Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report in terms of Directions issucd by the Com ptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act’2013 for the financial year 2023-24

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing ol accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any. may be stated.

According to the information and cxplanations given to us and based on our audit, all the accounting
transactions are routed through I'T system (i.e. Tally software in Head Office and SAGE 300 ERP/HIS/IDS
software in IIDL Suites) cxcept (he demand letters issued to buyers and rental invoices issued to tenants.
Demand letters issued to buvers and rental invoices issued to tenants are usually sent through MS-Office.

We have neither been informed nor we have come across during the course of audit any accounting transactions
having impact on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications which have been processed
outside the IT system.

2. Whether there is any restructuring ol an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by
a lender to the company duc (o the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender is a government company, then this direction is also
applicable for statutory auditor of Lender Company).

During the year, there is no instance of any restructuring of any existing loan or cases of waiver/write-off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the Company.

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy cle.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central /State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted forutilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

We have been informed (hat the Company has neither received nor any such funds are receivable by the
Company for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies for the financial year 2023-24

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vivek Raheja
Partner
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 IBKAGRW8941
Place: New Delhi
Date:; 19 June 2024



Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report in terms of Sub-directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act’2013 for the fina ncial year 2023-24

1. Investments:
Whether the titles of ownership in respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures etc. are available in physical/demat form
and these, in aggregate, agree with the respective amounts shown in the Company’s books of accounts? If not, details
may be stated.
The company had invested Rs. 75 Crores in Bonds issued by IFCI Limited. The possession of these bonds are
in demat form and the same has been shown in the Company’s books of accounts under the head of investment
in asset side of the balance sheet.
2. Loans:
In respect of provisioning requirement of all restructured, rescheduled, renegotiated loan-whether a system of
periodical assessment of realizable value of securities available against all such loans is in place and adequate provision
has been created during the year? Deliciencies in this regard, if any, may be suitably commented upon along with
financial impact.
The Company has neither granted any Loans during the year nor does the Company have any such outstanding
Loans as on 31-03-2024.
For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Vivek Raheja NE
Partner

Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 I BKAGRW894 |
Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024



Annexure - D to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™)

Management’s Responsibility for Infernal Fina ncial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAL"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies. the suleguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 10 the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal [inancial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over linancial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment o e risks ol material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over IFinancial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial staiements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets thil could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal linancial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override ol controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation o fthe internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over linancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has. inall material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 315 March 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For VPGS & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 507971C

Vivek Raheja e
Partner ' ==
Membership Number: 094781

UDIN: 2409478 1 BKAGRW8941
Place: New Delhi
Date: 19 June 2024

136



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

( R'in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No, As at 315t March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
ASSETS
1. Non - Current Assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets 2 15,376.83 15,699.68
b. Investment property 3 758.79 1,483.00
¢. Goodwill 4 2,817.94 2,817.94
d. Other Intangible Assets 5 8.23 20.53
e. Financial Assets - -
i. Investments 6 8,050.73 10,254.98
ii. Loans 7 - .
iii. Others 8 3,997.72 2,484.51
31,010.24 32,760.64
2. Current Assets
a. Inventories 9 6,966.28 7,145.77
b. Financial Assets - -
i. Trade Receivables 10 106.14 225.62
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 11 5,108.77 6,430.94
ii. Bank Balance other than (i) above 12 7,722.07 6,386.87
iv. Loans 13 - -
v. Others 14 1,575.54 1,009.23
c. Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 1,109.53 1,055.55
d. Other Current Assets 16 372.54 355.79
22,960.86 22,609.77
TOTAL ASSETS 53,971.10 55,370.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 17 42,709.92 42,709.92
b. Other Equity 18 8,417.88 9,778.03
51,127.80 52,487.96
2. Non - Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 19 - .
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 20 64.00 58.68
b. Provisions 21 471.14 503.83
c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 1,012.69 962.50
d. Other Non - Current Liabilities 23 - 3.55
1,547.83 1,528.56
3. Current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Trade Payables 24 141.58 110.50
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 25 378.21 401.62
b. Other Current Liabilities 26 766.00 810.76
c. Provisions 27 9.66 31.01
1,295.46 1,353.89
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 53,971,10 55,370.41
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59
As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(NIdhi Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

R

{Sachikanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Pooja Vanjani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

2. Diluted (in Rs.)

(X In Lakhs)
particulars Note No. For the year ended 31st |For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Income
Revenue from Operations 28 2,055.74 2,339.84
Other Income 29 2,146.41 1,988.06
Total Income (A) 4,202.15 4,327.89
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 30 317.07 404,59
Employee benefit expenses 31 615.97 599.38
Finance Costs 32 6.34 7.90
Net Loss on Fair Value changes 33 204.10 -
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 34 321.08 397.03
Other Expenses 35 1,146.92 995.13
Total Expenses (B) 2,611.48 2,404.02
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A - B) 1,590.67 1,923.87
Exceptional Items 36A - (63.24)
Profit / (Loss) before tax 1,590.67 1,860.64
Less: Tax Expense
1. Current Tax 39 366.18 293.88
2. Deferred Tax 52 49.02 97.81
3. MAT Credit Entitlement - (281.83)
4. Income Tax for Earlier Years 39 40.12 7.37
Profit / (Loss) for the period from continulng operations, net of tax 1,135.34 1,743.41
DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS
Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax) -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (C) 1,135.34 1,743.41
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A. i. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 36
a. Acturial Gain / Loss 4.20 (5.95)
ii. Income tax relating to items that will not to be reclassifled to
RoaEs profit or loss 117 (1.65)
Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax (D) 3.03 (4.29)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (C + D) 1,138.37 1,739.12
Earning per equity share (for continuing and discontinuing operations) 37
1. Basic {in Rs.) 0.27 0.41
0.27 0.41

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 507971C

Sd/-
CA Vivek Rahe)a
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th Aprll 2024
Place : New Delhl

sd/-

Sd/-

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

(Nidhl Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Sd/-
(Sachikanta Mishra)
DIN : 02755068
DIRECTOR

Sd/-
(Pooja Vanjani)
M. No. : 22668
COMPANY SECRETARY




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GOI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN})

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31st March 2024

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st |For the year ended 31st March|
March 2024 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Total Comprehensive Income before Income Tax from

Continuing Operations 1,554.87 1,854.69
Discontinuing Operatlons - -
Profit before Income Tax including discontinued operations 1,594.87 1,854.69
Adjustments For :

Depreciation and Amortlzation Expense 321.08 397.03
Other Comprehensive Income {4.20) 5.95
Interest Income classified as Investing Cash Flows {179.02) {1,641.45)
Income from Investment Property classifled as Investing Cash Flows . .
Dividend Income classified as FInancing Cash Flows . .
Non - Cash Interest Income {7.13) (7.50)
Non - Cash Finance Costs 6.34 7.90
Non - Cash Deferred Income - {221.49)
Net Gain / Loss on fair value changes 204.10 -
Operating Profit before working capltal changes 1,936.04 395,13
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from purchase of

controlled entlties and sale of subsidlaries :

Decrease / (Increase) : Financlal Assets {446.84) (143.30)
Decrease / (Increase) : Inventorles 179.50 243.47
Decrease / {Increase} : Current Tax Assets {53.97) {124.77)
Decrease / {Increass) : Other Current Assets {16.74) 90.76
Increase / {Decrease) : Financlal Liabllitles 13.00 {336.54)
Increase / (Decrease) : Provisions {49.84) 7.75
Increase / (Decrease) : Other Current Liabilitles {48.31) 415
Cash Generated from Operatlons 1,512.83 136.65
Income Taxes Pald {405.52) (12.95)
Net Cash Inflow / {outflow) from Operating Actlvitles {A) 1,107.31 123.70
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

interest Income from Deposits & Bonds 179.02 1,641.45
Bank deposlts with maturity over 3 months but less than 12 months {1,335.20) 2,641.86
Bank deposits with maturlty over 12 months {1,513.21) {1,584,02)
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment {0.64) {20.10)
Purchase of Intangible Assets {0.12) .
Purchase / Maturity of Tax Free Bond 2,000.15 -
Rental Income from Investment Property = -
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 739.05 17.08
Investment in SAGE Fund - {100.00)
Net Cash Inflow / {outflow) from Investing Actlvitles (B} 69.05 2,596.27
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interim Dividend Recelved - ]
Interim Dividend Paid (2,498.53) -
Dividend Distributlon Tax Paid - -
Buy-back of Equity Shares

Premium paid on buy-back of Equity Shares -

Tax paid on buy-back of Equity Shares -

Repayment of 9.7% Non-Convertlble Bonds - -
Finance Costs -

Net Cash Inflow / (outflow} from FInancing Actlvities (C) (2,498,53) -
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equlivalents {A+8+C) {1,322.17) 2,719.97
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beglnning of the year 6,430.94 3,710,96
Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the end of the year (D} 5,108.77 6,430.94
Reconclltation of Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the end of the year

Cash on Hand 1.65 1.79
Cheques / Drafts on Hand - -
Balances in Current / Savings Accounts with Banks 83.73 78.91
Balances in Deposit Accounts with maturlty less than 3 months 5,023.38 6,350.24
Total Cash and Cash Equlvalents at the end of the year 5,108.77 6,430.94
Out of (D), sgnificant cash and cash equlvalent balances held by the entity that

are not avallable for use - -
Non Cash FInancing and Investing Actlvities 0.79 221,08
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory information in Notes 1 to 59

As per our report of even date attached

For VPGS & Co, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 507971C

5d/- sd/-

(Amrendra Kumar}

Sd/- DIN: 10472659
CA Vivek Raheja MANAGING DIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. No, 094781
sd/-
{Nidhl Agarwal}
Date : 27th Aprll 2024 M. No: 413317

Place : New Delhl

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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{Sachikanta Mishra)
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DIRECTOR

Sd/-
{Pooja Vanjanl)
M. No. : 22668
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March 2024

{% In Lakhs)

Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the

reporting perlod

Share Capltal Issued
during the year

Share Capltal redeemed
during the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting period

Balance as at 31st March, 2023
Balance as at 31st March, 2024

42,709.92
42,709.92

42,709.92
42,709.92

B. OTHER EQUITY

(X in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Incame (OCI)
Particulars Capltal Redemptlon Remeasurement of Total
Reserve Retalned Earnings Defined Benefit Plans Others
Balance as at 1st April 2022 6,812.91 1,195.81 30.20 8,038.92
Changes in Accounting Policy / Prior Period Errors
Proflt for the period 1,743.41 - 1,743.41
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax - . (4.29) - (4.29)
Changes in Equity due to Lease Extension -
Interim Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - - . .
Balance at 31st March, 2023 6,812.91 2,939.22 25.91 9,778.03
Changes in Accounting Policy / Prior Period Errors
Profit for the period 1,135.34 - 1,135.34
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax - 3.03 3.03
Changes in Equity due to Lease Extension - .
Interim Dividend Paid to Equity Shareholders (2,498.53) {2,498.53)
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid . . - .
Balance at 31st March, 2024 6,812.91 1,576.02 28.94 8,417.88
Summiary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information in Notes 1 to 59
As per our report of even date attached
For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
Sd/- Sd/-

Sd/-
CA Vivek Raheja
PARTNER
M. No. 094781

Date : 27th April 2024
Place : New Delhi

(Amrendra Kumar)
DIN: 10472659
MANAGING DIRECTOR

sd/-
(N1dhl Agarwal)
M. No: 413317
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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DIRECTOR

Sd/-
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Dethi— 110 019 (IN}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GROUP INFORMATION

IFCI Infrastructure Development Limited (“the Company”) is a company registered under the Companies Act, 2013
which was incorporated on October 10, 2007. The Company has been primarily engaged in the activities relating to
Real Estate Project Advisory and Execution, promotion, construction and development of Commercial and Residential
Complexes and Serviced Apartments of its own as well as under joint participatory agreements with others. The
hospitality project of the company under the brand name ‘lIDL Suites’, Service Apartments located at Mayur Vihar
has commenced its commercial operations from 1st of October 2011.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

11

1.1.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared by the
Company in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 and as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, in this regard.

Further, the consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act).

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in

these financial statements.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND EQUITY ACCOUNTING

a. The financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated, in terms of
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS — 110) — ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’.

b. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same
reporting date as that of the parent company — IFCl Infrastructure Development Ltd. i.e. year
ended March 31, 2024.

¢. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007GO0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

The group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
balance sheet respectively.

d. Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting after
initially being recognised at cost.

e. Interests in Joint Ventures are accounted for using the equity method (see (f) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

f. Equity Method
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

g. The subsidiary company considered in the financial statements is IIDL Realtors Private Limited

which was incorporated in India and became a subsidiary with effect from 28" December, 2010.
The company holds 100% ownership & interest in the subsidiary as on 31 March, 2024.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in Lakhs of Rupees and
rounded off to the nearest two decimals, except where otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention, except for the following material items:
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1.4

1.5

15.1

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

* Financial assets at FVTOCI that is measured at fair value
¢ Financial instruments at FVTPL that is measured at fair value
* Net defined benefit (asset) / liability - fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit

obligation

USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although, such
estimates and assumptions are made on a reasonable and prudent basis taking into account all
available information, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is initially measured at cost of acquisition/construction including any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment held for use or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes
non-refundable taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and

installation of the respective assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets are capitalized and its
corresponding replaced assets removed / retired from active use are derecognized.

If the cost of the replaced part or earlier inspection is not available, the estimated cost of similar new
parts / inspection is used as an indication of what the cost of the existing part/ inspection component
was when the item was acquired or inspection was carried out.

After initial recognition, Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
/ amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

In the case of commissioned assets, deposit works / cost — plus contracts where final settlement of
bills with contractors is yet to be affected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to
necessary adjustments in the year of final settlement.
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15.2

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 {IN)

Spares parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment which meets the recognition criteria of
Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized.

Investment properties include those portions of land and buildings that are held for long-term rental
yields and/or for capital appreciation or for a currently indeterminate use. Investment properties
include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are stated at cost of acquisition / construction less accumulated depreciation.
On disposal of an investment property, the difference between the disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Method of Depreciation used is Straight Line Method and the useful life of the asset taken is 60 years.

On the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has considered the carrying value of Investment
Properties (if any) as per previous GAAP-to be the deemed cost as per Ind AS 101.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Government licenses essential for the company’s operations and having a validity of over one year are
initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation calculated on the basis of

remaining validity period.

An item of Intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation / Amortization

Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method over their estimated useful life as prescribed
under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on Management assessment of useful life, if
lower than what is prescribed under the schedule. Depreciation is calculated on pro — rata basis.
improvements are amortised over the underlying lease term on a straight line basis. Residual value in
respect of items of Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property are considered as 5% of the
cost. Property, Plant and Equipment costing less than Rs. 5000/- individually are charged to the
statement of Profit & Loss Account in the year of their purchase itself.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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1.6

1.7

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi~ 110 019 (IN)

Intangible Assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and having
a useful life lasting with that of the equipment have been capitalized with the cost of computer.
Software carrying an identifiable utility of at least five years is amortized on a straight line basis over a
period of five years from the date put into use. Software with limited edition / period utility i.e.
requiring annual revision is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Account in the year of purchase.
Government licenses are amortized on a straight line basis over a period of their validity.

De - Recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets is de-recognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment or investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible Assets recognised as of the transition date measured
as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date as

per Ind AS 101.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON — FINANCIAL ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non — financial assets (other
than assets held for sale and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
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For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. The 'recoverable amount' of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. 'Value in use' is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent

that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through
sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell with gains

and losses on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held for sale, assets are
no longer amortised, depreciated or impaired.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are carried at cost. The cost comprises price
paid to acquire investment and directly attributable cost. On each reporting date, consequent upon
existence of any external or internal indication to impairment, the impairment loss shall be recognised
as difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The quantity and valuation
of inventories at the yearend is taken as certified by the management.

Inventory of real estate business comprise of —
i. Building / Residential Complex, Built-up floor space acquired / purchased for development and / or

sale / resale and other removable / disposable assets existing thereon. These are valued at lower of
cost or net realizable value wherein costs are determined by adding all considerations / costs which
are attributable to purchase / acquisition, and other expenses incurred specifically thereto.

ii. Land Bank — It consists of asset purchased by the Company that it intends to develop later on into

residential / commercial project but on which no construction has commenced. Land is initially
recognized at fair value which is generally the cost or net realizable value whichever is less. However,
it is discounted to present value when payment terms are deferred for a period of more than one year.
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iii. Work in Progress — Work-in-Progress includes construction work in progress and unsold portion of
Real Estate Projects. Increase / decrease in Work-in-Progress is accounted for as Income or
Expenditure for the year, as the case may be. Valuation of Work-in-Progress including unsold portion
of reality project is being done on basis of actual cost and overheads incurred which are directly
attributable to project, till completion or net realizable value whichever is less.

iv. Direct Materials, Stores and Spare Parts are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

v. Consumables including Cantering, Shuttering and Scaffolding, Loose Tools, Laboratory Equipment,
empty containers & others are valued on the basis of realizable value, based on the engineering
estimate.

Inventory of hospitality business comprises of closing balance of consumables purchased. FIFO
method is followed for ascertaining the cost price considered for valuation. Closing inventories are
valued at cost or replacement value, whichever is less, after providing for obsolescence and damage.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise Cash in hand, Balances in Bank Account, Remittance in Transit,
Cheques in hand and Demand Deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments
(original maturity less than 3 months) that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

LEASES (IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 116)

The company identifies lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset
(the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The company checks for
conditions needed to be fulfilled if the contract is to be classified as lease as under:

i. Identified asset.

ii. Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits

iii. Lessee directs the use

The Company as a Lessee

i. The company recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases for a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value.

ii. It then recognizes a right of use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligations to make lease payments.

fii. The company measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as
property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities.

iv. The company recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease

liability.
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V. Lease liability = Present value of lease rentals + present value of expected payments at the end
of lease. The lease liability will be amortized using the effective interest rate method.

vi. Lease term = non-cancellable period + renewable period if lessee reasonably certain to
exercise.

vil. Right to use asset = Lease liability + lease payments (advance)-lease incentives to be received

if any initial + initial direct costs + cost of dismantling / restoring etc. The asset will be
depreciated as per Ind AS 16 Property Plant and equipment.

The Company as a Lessor

i The company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

ii. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards,
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For finance leases, the company derecognizes
the underlying asset and recognizes a net investment in the lease.

iii. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. For operating leases, the company
continues to recognize the underlying asset.

iv. Any selling profit or loss is recognized at lease commencement.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES RELATED TO CLAIMS, LITIGATION etc.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are determined based on management estimates required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Arbitration Awards

Arbitration / Court’s awards along with related interest receivable / payable are, to the extent not
taken into accounts at the time of initiation, are recognized after it becomes decree. Permanent
Machinery of Arbitration, Government of India, is accounted for on finalization of award by the
appellate authority. Interest to / from in these cases are accounted when the payment is probable
which the point is when matter is considered settled by management.

Liquidated Damages

Liquidated Damages / Compensation for delay in respect of clients/ contractors, if any, are accounted
for when payment is probable which is the point when matter is considered settled by management.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount

cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable.

SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from retained earnings, net of any related income

tax benefits.

Other components of equity include Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) arising from actuarial gain or
loss on re-measurement of defined benefit liability and return on plan assets.

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits. All transactions with owners of

the parent are recorded separately within equity. Annual dividend distribution to shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any
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interim dividend paid is recognised on approval by Board of Directors. Dividend payable and
corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Classifications and Subsequent Measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or FVTPL, depending on the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets and the Company’s business model for managing the

financial assets.
Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level, because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

e The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

¢ The frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in
isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realized;

e The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company applies judgement and considers all the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains any contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the said
assessment, the Company considers prepayment and extension terms, features that modify
consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of the interest rates).

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

A Financial Asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met:
e |t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual

cash flows.
e The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less
any impairment losses.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI’)

A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI only if both of the following conditions are met:
¢ It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling financial assets.
* The contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments

of principal and interest.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses on said financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and do not reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance

sheet.
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Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVOC(|, is classified as at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account.

Investment in equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 (i.e. other than equity investments in subsidiaries /
associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss
account. However, on initial recognition of an equity instrument that is not held for trading, the
Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or amortised cost, as appropriate and is accordingly accounted for.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company is recognised at the proceeds
received, net of directly attributable transaction costs."

Measurement Basis

Amortised cost

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR
method of discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.
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Fair Valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a
liability reflects it non — performance risk.

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that
maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in

pricing a transaction."

1.16.10 De-recognition / Modification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

(A)

(i)

De-recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. The Company also recognise a liability
for the consideration received attributable to the Company’s continuing involvement on the asset
transferred. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset de-recognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expired.

Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
modification results in de-recognition of the original financial asset and new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not
result in de-recognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying
amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying
amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified
financial asset by recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or
loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

If the modification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amortised cost of the liability is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original EIR and the resulting gainor loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified
financial liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument."

1.16.11 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.16.12 Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises impairment allowances for ECL on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTPL. No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

¢ Financial Assets that are not credit impaired — as the present value of all cash shortfalls that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

e Financial Assets with significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired — as the present value
of all cash shortfalls that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
asset.

e Financial Assets that are credit impaired — as the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated cash flows

e Undrawn Loan Commitments — as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to the Company if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive with respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI.

1.16.13 Write-off of Financial Assets

1.17

Financial assets are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the
company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write — off. This assessment is carried out at

the individual asset level.

However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made
are recognised in profit or loss.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As a practical expedient the Company has adopted ‘simplified approach’ using the provision matrix
method for recognition of expected loss on trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on three
years rolling average default rates observed over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. These average default rates are applied on total credit risk
exposure on trade receivables and outstanding for more than one year at the reporting date to
determine lifetime Expected Credit Losses.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The expenses and income in foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing
on the date of transactions / at the forward rate, if booked, for such transaction. Assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies and accrued income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated
into Indian Rupees at the rates advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI)
prevailing towards the close of the accounting period. Gains / losses, if any, on valuation of various
assets and liabilities are taken to Statement of Profit & Loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

vi.

Rental income from Investment Property / Flats held as Inventories is recognized on a straight —
line basis over the period of lease terms.

Interest income is reported on an accrual basis using the Effective Interest Rate method.
Interest Income from Bank Deposits is recognized on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

Income by way of Fees for Project Advisory and Execution services is recorded on accrual basis as
per services rendered pursuant to the specific service agreements.

Revenue from the external project services is recognized based on the Cost-plus method. A fixed
mark-up percentage is added to the cost incurred towards construction and the total is recognized
as revenue. The stage of completion is determined on the basis of work completion certificate
obtained from the engineer/ architect.

Revenue from real estate development of constructed properties is recognized based on the
“percentage of completion method”. Sale consideration as per the legally enforceable
Agreements to Sell entered into is recognized as revenue based on the percentage of actual
project costs incurred to total estimated project cost, subject to following:

Actual cost incurred is not less than 25 percent of the total estimated project cost.

No significant uncertainty exists regarding receipt of consideration from the customers,
In case of overdue, on actual realization basis.

All significant risks and rewards are transferred to the customer.

o 0 oo

Project cost includes cost of land, estimated cost of construction and development of such
properties. The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effect of
any changes in such estimates recognized in the period such changes are determined.
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vii. Revenue from hospitality services is recognized on accrual basis.

a. Selling price is determined on the basis of published rack rate less discount offered to

customers.
b. Income in foreign exchange: The bills for services rendered are raised in Indian Rupees.

The payment received in foreign currency against these bills, is credited and accounted
for atthe rate / rates prevalent on the date of receipt of payment. The gains/ losses arising
out of the fluctuation in the exchange rates are accounted for on realization.

viii. Dividend income is recognized at the time the right to receipt is established.

ix. Other items of income are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when control of
respective goods or service has been transferred to customer.

X. The company shall recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” as and when any such revenue instance occurs.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends and Dividend Distribution Tax thereon are recognised if and only when the same are
approved by the shareholders in the general meeting and consequently paid to the shareholders.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the company in exchange for service
rendered by employees. Employee benefits include: short — term employee benefits, post —
employment benefits and other long — term employee benefits.

Short Term Employee Benefits

When an employee has rendered service to the company during an accounting period, the company
recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid and as an
expense. Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated
as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at

the reporting date.
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Defined Benefit Plans — Gratuity & Leave Encashment

Defined benefit plans are those plans that provide guaranteed benefits to certain categories of
employees, either by way of contractual obligations or through a collective agreement. The company
operates unfunded defined benefit plan. The cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each fiscal year end. The
obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in
the current costs and the fair value of any plan assets, if any is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Accrued Benefit Method (same as Projected Unit Credit Method), which
recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the
market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results in
a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contribution

to the plan.

The change in defined benefit plan liability is split into changes arising out of service, interest cost and
re-measurements and the change in defined benefit plan asset is split between interest income and
re-measurements. Changes due to service cost (which is the increase of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in the current period) and net interest
cost / income {which is the change during the period in the defined benefit liability that arises from
the passage of time) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Re-measurements of net defined
benefit liability / (asset) which comprise of the below are recognized in other comprehensive income:
e Actuarial gains and losses;

e The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit

liability (asset)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income Tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects
of temporary differences between tax base and book base). It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.
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1.22.3

1.22.4

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

Current Tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year
in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the tax payable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Minimum Alternative
Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the
statement of profit and loss. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Company:

a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority.
Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recoghised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period
for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set —off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit
recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the

aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.
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1.24

1.25

1.26

IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

CIN: U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office — 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi— 110 019 (IN)

PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for
prior period presented in which the error occurred or if the error occurred before the earliest period

presented, by restating the opening statement of financial position.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the
shareholders and weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during
the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportable business segments namely — ‘Real Estate Activities’
comprising of Advisory and Execution Services, Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and
Development of Real Estate Projects and in ‘Hospitality’ provided through Serviced Apartments under
the brand name ‘Fraser Suites’.

ALLOCATION OF COMMON COSTS

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each
segment to the total common costs.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flow statement is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 — “Statement of
Cash Flows". ’



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(% In Lakhs)
Note
NEL Partlculars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Gross Carrylng Value
Opening Balance
a. Land 6,228.29 6,228.29
b. Buildings 10,630.46 10,630.46
c. Plant and Equipments 2,114.19 2,118.08
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.90 1,851.24
e. Vehicles 76.90 76.90
f. Office Equipment 13.68 13.68
g. Others 128.80 118.54
21,040.22 21,037.20
Additlons / (Sale) during the perlod
a, Land .
b. Buildings - -
c. Plant and Equipments (7.44) (3.89)
d. Furniture and Fixtures (0.23) (3.34)
e. Vehicles - -
f. Office Equipment - -
g. Others 0.64 10.25
{7.03) 3.02
Closing Balance
a. Land 6,228.29 6,228.29
b. Buildings 10,630.46 10,630.46
c. Plant and Equipments 2,106.74 2,114.19
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,847.67 1,847.90
e. Vehicles 76.90 76.90
f, Office Equipment 13.68 13.68
g. Others 129.44 128.80
21,033.19 21,040.22
Accumulated Depreclation
Opening Balance
a. Land 32.18 29.13
b. Buildings 1,954.16 1,785.59
c. Plant and Equipments 1,411.23 1,268.52
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,749.41 1,745.61
Note [ . venicles 70.80 69.36
No. 2 | f. Office Equipment 12.99 11.43
g. Others 109.77 99.20
5,340.54 5,008.84
Depreciation for the period
a. Land - 3.05
b. Buildings 168.57 168.57
¢. Plant and Equipments 140.55 142,71
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1.89 3.80
e. Vehicles 1.43 1.43
f. Office Equipment - 1.57
g. Others 3.37 10.56
315.82 331.69
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreclation
a. Land 32.18 32.18
b. Buildings 2,122.74 1,954.16
¢. Plant and Equipments 1,551.78 1,411.23
d. Furniture and Fixtures 1,751.30 1,749.41
e. Vehicles 72.23 70.80
f. Office Equipment 12.99 12.99
g. Others 113.13 109.77
5,656.36 5,340.54
Net Carrylng Value of Property, Plant and Equipment (A)
a. Land 6,196.12 6,196.12
b. Buildings 8,507.72 8,676.29
c. Plant and Equipments 554.96 702.96
d. Furniture and Fixtures 96.37 98.49
e. Vehicles 4.68 6.11
f. Office Equipment 0.68 0.68
g. Others 16.30 19.03
TOTAL 15,376.83 15,699.68
Out of (A) above, leasehold property, plant and equipment
- {5.72)

a. Right of use of Land on FInance Lease
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(T In Lakhs)

Note
No.

Particulars

As at 31st March 2024

As at 31st March 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance

a. Flats & Buildings 1,876.10 1,876.10
Additions / {Sale) during the perlod
a. Flats & Bulldings -731.37
Closing Balance
a. Flats & Buildings 1,144.73 1,876.10
Note | Accumulated Depreciation
No. 3 | Opening Balance
a. Flats & Bulldings 393.10 341.02
Depreciation for the perlod
a. Flats & Bulldings -7.16 52.08
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreclatlon
a. Flats & Buildings 385.94 393.10
Net Carrylng Value of Investment Property
a. Flats & Buildings 758.79 1,483.00
(T In Lakhs)
Note
No. Partlculars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
GOODWILL
Note | Goodwill 2,817.94 2,817.94
No. 4 2,817.94 2,817.94
(% In Lakhs)
Note
NGl Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance
a. Computer Software 26.19 26.19
b. Licenses and Franchises 60.00 60.00
86.19 86.19
Additions / (Sale) during the period
a. Computer Software 0.12
b. Licenses and Franchlses -
0.12
Closing Balance
a. Computer Software 26.31 26.19
b. Licenses and Franchises 60.00 60.00
86.31 86.19
Accumulated Amortization
Note | opening Balance
No. 5 | a. Computer Software 24.90 23.63
b. Licenses and Franchises 40.76 28.77
65.66 52.40
Amortization for the period
a. Computer Software 0.40 1.27
b. Licenses and Franchises 12.02 11.99
12,42 13,25
Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreclation
a. Computer Software 25.30 24.90
b. Licenses and Franchises 52.78 40.76
78.08 65.66
Net Carrylng Value
a. Computer Software 1.01 1.29
b. Licenses and Franchises 7.22 19.24
TOTAL 8.23 20.53
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note A
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
a. Investments in Equity Instruments
i. Subsidiaries
ii. Others
1. Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited 450.73 654.83
2. Other Entities 100.00 100.00
550.73 754.83
b. Investments in Preference Shares
Note c. Investments in Debentures / Bonds
1. IFCI Limited - Bonds 7,500.00 7,500.00
No. 6 2. IFCI Limited - Tax Free Bonds . 2,000.15
7,500.00 9,500.15
8,050.73 10,254.98
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 8,050.73 10,254.98
Market Value of Unquoted Investments 8,050.73 10,254.98
Aggregate amount of Impairment in value of investments 399.70 195.60
(X in Lakhs)
Note
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
0.
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Note | a. Security Deposits
No.?7 -
(X in Lakhs)
Note -
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
0.

Note
No. 8

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security Deposits

Finance Lease Receivable

Bank Deposits with maturity more than 12 months

650.12 649.83
3,347.60 1,834.68
3,997.72 2,484.51
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(X in Lakhs)
Note
s Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
INVENTORIES
a. Raw Materials 9.89 6.55
Out of (a) above, goods in transit = .
9.89 6.55
b. Work - in - Progress - 1,321.23
Out of (b) above, goods in transit - -
- 1,321.23
c. Stores and spares 7.20 8.17
Note Out of (c) above, goods in transit - -
No. 9 7.20 8.17
d. Others
i. Land 5,759.88 4,518.27
ii. Land on lease cum sale basis 1,177.24 1,276.85
iii. Consumables 12.06 14,69
6,949.19 5,809.82
6,966.28 7,145.77
(% in Lakhs)
':'\:::e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE RECEIVABLES
a. Secured considered good
b. Unsecured considered good
i. Due over six months 184.67 216.00
Note ii. Other Trade Receivables 39.09 72.54
No. 10 223.76 288.54
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 117.61 62.92
Net Unsecured considered good 106.14 225.62
106.14 225.62
(X in Lakhs)
T\:::e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
a. Balances with Banks 83.73 78.91
83.73 78.91
b. Cheques and Drafts on Hand -
hote c. Cash on Hand 1.65 1.79
No. 11 1.65 1.79
d. Others
i. Deposits with maturity less than 3 months 5,023.38 6,350.24
5,023.38 6,350.24
5,108.77 6,430.94
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFClI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(X in Lakhs)
Note .
No Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN THOSE ABOVE
Note | Deposits with maturity between 3 and 12 months 7,722.07 6,386.87
No. 12 7,722.07 6,386.87
(X in Lakhs)
Note
No Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
a. Security Deposits -
b. Loans to related parties = -
c. Other loans
Note i. Doubtful 4.49 0.35
No. 13 4.49 0.35
Less: Provision for Bad / Doubtful Debts 4.49 0.35
Net Other Loans - B
(X in Lakhs)
Note
7 Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
0.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

a. Interest Accrued on Deposits 941.03 375.21
Note | b. Interest Accrued on Bonds 634.32 633.82
No. 14| ¢ Other Receivables 0.20 0.20
1,575.54 1,009.23
(X in Lakhs)

NNZte Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

CURRENT TAX ASSETS

a. Advance Tax 211,25 205.36
Note b. Tax Deducted at Source 930.08 755.33
c. MAT Credit Entitlement 836.75 836.75
No. 15 Less : Provision for Tax 868.55 741.88
1,109.53 1,055.55

Note: Provision for tax, TDS, TCS, reconciliation process is under way,

|63




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(R in Lakhs)
Note
s Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHERS CURRENT ASSETS
a. Capital Advances -
b. Advances Other than Capital Advances
Note
Other Advances 372.54 355.79
No. 16 372.54 355.79
¢. Others - -
372.54 355.79
(X in Lakhs)
Note
i Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
EQUITY
Authorized Share Capital
100,00,00,000 (Previous year - 100,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00
Issued Share Capital
42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 42,709.92 42,709.92
Note - . 42,709.92 42,709.92
Subscribed Share Capital
No. 17 42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
Paid Up Share Capital
42,70,99,243 (Previous year - 42,70,99,243) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each 42,709.92 42,709.92
42,709.92 42,709.92
TOTAL 42,709.92 42,709.92
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note .
No. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER EQUITY
Share application money pending allotment = -
Equity component of other Financial Instruments = -
Note | Reserve and Surplus
No. 18| Capital Redemption Reserve 6,812.91 6,812.91
Retained Earnings 1,576.02 2,939.22
Other Comprehensive Income 28.94 25,91
8,417.88 9,778.03
Note No. 18 (i)
Capital Redemption Reserve (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Appropriations during the year - -
Closing Balance 6,812.91 6,812.91
Note No. 18 (ii)
Retained Earnings (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 2,939.22 1,195.81
Net Profit for the period 1,135.34 1,743.41
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings - -
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obligations, net of taxes 3.03 (4.29)
interim Dividend paid to Equity Shareholders (2,498.53) -
Dividend Distribution Tax Paid - -
Closing Balance 1,576.02 2,939.22
Note No. 18 (iii)
Other Comprehensive Income (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Opening Balance 25.91 30.20
Remeasurements of post - employement benefit obligations, net of taxes 3.03 (4.29)
Closing Balance 28.94 25.91
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFClI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note .
. Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
a. Preference Shares
Note b. Bonds / Debentures -
No. 19 B =
(X in Lakhs)
Note
e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note a. Retention Money 64.00 57.66
b. Finance Lease Liability 0.00 1.02
No. 20 64.00 58.68
(X in Lakhs)
'::::e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provision for employee benefits
i. Gratuity 91.37 86.05
ii. Leave Encashment 28.31 28.81
Note 119.68 114.86
No. 21| b. Others
i. Provision for Expense 351.46 388.97
351.46 388.97
471.14 503.83
(X in Lakhs)
Note Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
a. Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of
i. Due to depreciation 328.52 365.09
ii. Others 791.02 704.26
Note 1,119.54 1,069.35
No. 22 | Less:
i. Others 106.85 106.85
106.85 106.85
1,012.69 962.50
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GO0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(X in Lakhs)
Note i
No Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Deferred Income 3.55
Note
b. Others - -
No. 23 - T
(X in Lakhs)
Note .
e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
CURRENT TRADE PAYABLES
a. Micro and Small enterprises 0.40 4.87
Note
b. Others 141.19 105.63
No. 24 141.58 110.50
(X in Lakhs)
Note .
e Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Security Deposits Received 0.10 0.10
Note Book Overdraft - =
Creditors for other liabilities 9.10 9.10
No. 25{ gther payables 369.01 392.41
378.21 401.62
(X in Lakhs)
Note .
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
o.
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
a. Advances Received 689.78 764.68
Note | b. Statutory Dues 32.56 12.06
No. 26| ¢ Deferred Income 43.66 34.02
766.00 810.76
(X in Lakhs)
Note .
N Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
o.
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
a. Provisions for employee benefits
i. Gratuity 5.82 5.42
Note ii. Leave Encashment 2.92 3.05
No. 27|, others 0.92 22.54
9.66 31.01
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400D1L2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note . For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
a. Sale of Properties 53.55 169.60
b. Sale of Services 32.20 31.79
Note ¢. Room Rent 1,456.18 1,630.71
d. Proceeds from Restaurant 177.14 215.12
No. 28 e. Revenue from external projects 272.85 272.85
f. Other Operating Revenues 63.83 19.76
2,055.74 2,339.84
(X in Lakhs)
Note For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
OTHER INCOME
a. Interest Income
i. Earned and Accrued on Deposits 1,020.01 746.15
ii. Earned and Accrued on IFC! 9.7% RRB Bonds 728.00 727.50
iii. Earned and Accrued on Tax Free Bonds 167.80 167.80
iv. Others 7.13 7.50
Note 1,922.93 1,648.94
No. 29| b. Dividend Income -
c. Deferred Income - Land - 221.49
d. Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 122.57 .
e. Miscellaneous Income 100.91 117.62
22347 339.11
2,146.41 1,988.06
(% in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 March 2023
COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED
a. Opening Stock 7,116.36 7,344.72
b. Purchases 137.84 176.23
Note 7,254.20 7,520.95
No. 30 |ess: closing Stock 6,937.13 7,116.36
317.07 404.59
(X in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 March 2023
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Note | Salaries and Wages 579.57 566.28
b. Staff Welfare 36.40 33.10
No. 31 615.97 599.38
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007GO0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024
(X in Lakhs)
Note Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
No. March 2024 March 2023
FINANCE COST
a. Fair Value Changes in Equity Investments 6.34 7.80
Note
b. Other Interest Costs - 0.10
No. 32 6.34 7.90
(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Note No, Particulars March 2024 March 2023
NET LOSS ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Net loss on financial instruments at fair value though Profit and Loss
Note |a. On Investments 204.10 .
No. 33 |b- Others - -
204.10 E
(X in Lakhs)
Note For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
a. Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Note i. Property, Plant and Equipment 315.82 331.69
ii. Investment Property -7.16 52.08
No. 34 b. Amortization on Intangible Assets 12.42 13.25
321.08 397.03
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)
Note . For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
OTHER EXPENSES
a. Repairs and Maintenance
i. Building 60.27 48.88
ii. Others 38.08 33.57
b. Rent Paid (including Lease Rent) 24.10 72.07
c. Rates and Taxes 107.28 79.96
d. Travelling and Conveyances 5.59 6.33
e. Legal And Professional Expenses 64.36 25.91
f. Security Expenses 85.72 89.63
g. Auditors's Remuneration 2.97 2.70
h. Insurance Charges Paid 10.55 13.39
i. Bad Debts - 8.50
j. Telephone & Postage Expenses 3.98 7.52
k. Laundry & Cleaning 23.05 16.22
l. Television & Music 0.48 1.20
Note |m. Printing and Stationery 5.44 5.75
No. 35 |n. Directors Fee 2.86 3.62
o. Fuel & Gas 48.57 61.73
p. Commission & Brokerage 140.96 135.95
g. Marketing and License 8.08 5.48
r. Advertisement and Exhibition Expenses 1.56 3.35
s. Compensation-21st Milestone Project 18.74 -
t. Vehicle Running & Maintenance 0.35 0.90
u. Electricity & Water Expenses 261.36 272.95
v. Provision for Interest & Expenses 22.11 22.11
w. Provision for Service Tax Cenvat 36.88 -
X. Provision for Doubtful Debts 56.21 24,73
y. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 24.86 14.04
z. Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 12.57
aa. Other Miscellaenous Expenses 79.94 38.64
1,146.92 995.13
(X in Lakhs)
Note . For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars
No. March 2024 March 2023
ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT AND LOSS
a. Acturial Gain / (Loss) 4.20 -5.95
Note 4.20 -5.95
No. 36| Less: Tax on Above 1.17 -1.65
3.03 -4.29
Note No Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
1 March 2024 March 2023
Exceptional Items
Note No. Liabi.Iit.y Written Back -
36A Provision Reversal - -
GST Input Reversal - -63.24
Total - -63.24
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

Note No. 37 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

as at 31st March 2024

(R in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders (in Rs.) 1,138.37 1,739.12
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares 42,70,99,243 42,70,99,243
Face Value per Equity Share {in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.) 0.27 0.41
Note No. 38 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Audit Fees 1.98 1.98
Certification and Other Services 0.99 0.73
Travelling and Out of Pocket expenses 0.17 0.06
TOTAL 3.14 2,77
Note No. 39 - TAX EXPENSES
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Current Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 366.18 293.88
b. In respect of Previous Years 40.12 7.37
406.31 301.25
Deferred Tax
a. In respect of Current Year 50.19 96.16
TOTAL 456.50 397.41
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 40 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates in two reportable business segment namely ‘Real Estate Activities’ comprising Advisory and Execution Services,
Purchase and Sale of Properties and Construction and Development of Real Estate Projects and in 'Hospitality' comprising of Serviced
Apartments under the brand name 'lIDL Suites'. Hence the segment wise disclosure as required by Ind AS - 108 is as under:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars DiyiCion Consolidated Total
Real Estate Hospltality

SEGMENT REVENUE
Sales
Domestic 358.60 1,697.14 2,055.74
Export - -
Inter Segment Sales - - -
Other Income 2,112.94 33.46 2,146.41
Total Revenue 2,471.54 1,730.61 4,202.15
SEGMENT EXPENSES
Operating Expenses 902.11 1,381.95 2,284.06
Depreciation & Amortization Allocated 4.91 316.17 321.08
Operating Profit 1,564.52 32.48 1,597.01
Interest Cost Allocated 6.34 - 6.34
Profit Before Exceptlonal item and Tax 1,558.18 32.48 1,590.67
OTHER INFORMATION
Segmental Assets 37,377.88 16,593.22 53,971.10
Segmental Liabilities 37,377.88 16,593.22 53,971.10
Exceptional Items - - -

Note No. 41 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

i. Name of the related parties and description of relationship -

A. Enterprises having significant influence over the company

IFCI Limited - Holding Company

IIDL Realtors Private Limited - Wholly owned Subsidiary Company

B. Enterprises having related party dealings with the company
Jangipur Bengal Mega Food Park Limited - investment in Equity Shares
IFCI Factors Limited - Controlled by Parent Company

IFCI VENTURE CAPITAL FUNDS LIMITED - Controlled by Parent Company
C. Key Managerial Personnel (Directors during the FY 2022 - 23 and FY 2023 - 24)
Mr. Prasoon : cessation w.e.f. 19/09/2022

Mr. Sunil Kumar Bansal : cessation w.e.f. 19/09/2022

Mr. Sachikanta Mishra : appointed w.e.f. 07/10/2022

Mr. Vijay Kumar Tyagi : appointed w.e.f. 26/04/2023

Mr. Debashis Gupta : cessation w.e.f. 20/12/2023

Mr. Rahul Bhave : appointed w.e.f. 26/12/2023

Mr. Vijay Kumar Deshraj : w.e.f. 02/09/2022 (MD till 18/01/2024)

Mr. Amrendra Kumar : appointed w.e.f. 18/01/2024

Mr. Manoj Mittal — appointed w.e.f. 15/06/2021

Mr. Venugopal K Nair : 25/08/2018

Dr. Sumita Rai : 14/05/2018

Mr. Vishal Pandey (CFO) : till 26.05.2023

Ms. Nidhi Agarwal (CFO) : appointed w.e.f. 13.07.2023

Ms. Tannu Sharma (CS) : till 15.09.2023

Ms. Meenakshi Mittal (CS) : w.e.f, 23.10.2023 to 15.03.2024

Ms. Pooja Vanjani (CS) : appointed w.e.f. 26.03.2024




PaAISIRY SIUBWRSINqUIIDY
Soxe) 10} pew sjuswAheq

SNOLLDVSNVYL 4IHLO

00°001

00°00S'2

00°00S'2

PUN4 395vS 4DA1

spuog 2914 Xej s,)4]
spuog s,iD4|

BuipueisinQ sjunowy [e10)

S13ISSv

1241 Aq panssi spuog

SAUNigvn

o
06°€T
€£C°86

64°CT

<o
06'¢€T
£V'S8

(PaA19D3 sUBWIBSINQUIRY) "1 1918 M 1§ A1D1I93
(LSO 10 aAISN[IX3) SasIWId JO U3Y

uoneindap

Uo Jeils 104 (sHyausq Suipnjpul) uonessunway

S3SN3dX3

08°L9T

0s'L2L

08°L91

0Ss'L¢L

934 XB] Ul JUSWIISSAU| UG PANIIOE PUB PIUJES 15311U|

uonendap

uo yeis 104 ( syysuaq Suipnpul) uonessunway
(pPama13334 suUBWBSINqUIBY) "33 Ja1eM 1§ APLIDS|T
swodu| ey

spuog

spuog
S,1241 Ul JUSWISIAUL UC PANIIIE pue PaUIes 1Sa131U|

JNOINI

£5°86%°C

€5°861'C

susunsaaul Aunb3 uo paaiadsy puspialg wiusjugl
siap|oyaseys Aunb3 o1 pred puspiaig wiiau|

JONYNIY

|elol

pajwWI s10ed P4

Q3LIAN SaNn4d
TVLIdVYD JUNLNIA 1241

(pantwi 1241)
Auedwo) Suipjoy

uondesuel] Jo ainleN

(sipje ur y)

(¥T-ET0Z Ad] AUBGLIOI 343 JSAO 95UsN|jU JUBDJIUBIS SUIAEY S951dI5103 IIM SUOITIESTER jos|elsg 1

¥720C Yd1eN 1sTE e se

133HS IONVIVE 40 14Vd ONIWYOL SILON a31vaIioSNOD

(NI) 6T0 OTT - 1Y|2Q M3N ‘32€|d NIY3N T9 “4oMO] [D4| 40014 Y1 - 310 "pSay
€EC69TI0DL0027A@00YSEN = NID
Q3LININ LNIJWdOTIAIA IEUNLINYLSYHANI 1D4]

\ 16



PaAI9IRY SUBWIRSINQUIIDY
Saxel Joy apew sjuswAed

SNOILDVSNVYL ¥IHL0

00°00T 00°00T
ST°000°C - ST°000°C spuog 9314 xe] s,|2di
00°00S'L - 00°00S'L spuog s, 34l
- = . SuipuelsinQ syunowy je3o0)
S1355V
- < . D41 Aq pansst spuog
SILLMEVIT
10 vT0 (Paa1z2al sjuswasINgIRYy) 0313 J93epn 1§ AlouId3|g
€689 = £6'8S (1S9 Jo anIsn|ox3) sasiwR.d Jo Jusy
) ~ 19°LS uoneindap
L9'Ls uo yeis 104 (suyauaq Suipnpul) uceiaunuay
S3ISN3IdX3
] = obo uoneindap
0v’0 uo yeis Joy ( syjausq Suipnpul) uonelaunway
- - - (pan1231 syuswasInquuiay) *013 Js1em 18 A1d1Ida)3
- - - awodu| [eIuUaYy
. - 08°£9T spuog
08'L91 93J4 XB| Ul JUBWISIAU| UO PSNJIIIE PUB PaUIED 3SAUBU|
. - 0s'LtL spuog
0s'LeL S,[D41 Ul JUSWIS3AUL UO PINIIIE PUB PaUIEe3 1S31a1U|
SINOINI
- - - sjuauwnsaaug Aiinb3 uo panladay puspiAlg WS
- - - siapjoyaseys Aunb3 01 pied puapialg wisiu|
FDNVNIS

(uonrepunod jewos [341) (peawn 1241)
=121 jualed Japun 3snug Auedwo) 8uipjoH HORIESUEIL JO 2injeN
(supet ury)

(€2 - T20t Ad] AuBdwod 343 19A0 sousnfjul Jued)l

¥20¢C Yd21BAl IsTE e Se

1S BUIABY S35 AIIIUS 1M SUDIDESUES] JO 5[1e1ag 11

133HS IDONVIVE 40 14Vd ONIWYO4L SILON a3LvainosNOd

(NI) 6T0 OTT - 1412Q M3N ‘@e|d NIYBN T9 “4aMO] |4 100} Y1/ - 33140 "poy

€€269T109£0021A@00SyN : NID
Q3LIANIN LINJINDOTIAIA IUNLONYLSYHANI 124

ek}



IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

iil. Details of transactlons with KMPs during the year

as at 31st March 2024

(% In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
1. Whole Time Directors / CFO / Company Secretary
a. Short term employee benefits 73.77 72.67
b. Other long term employee benefits 5.25 -
¢. Post employment benefits 4.79 -
d. Others (specify) - -
83.80 72.67
il Independent_/ Nominee Directors
a. Sitting Fees 2.86 3.62
b. Others (specify) 0.12 -
2.98 3.62
86.78 76.29

Note No. 42 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

I. Interest Rate Risk Management

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk because company has borrowed funds at fixed interest rates.

il. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss

(% in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans - -
Other Financial Assets 2,225.66 1,659.06
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - -
Other Financial Liabilities 64.00 58.68
2,289.67 1,717.74
lil. Break up of Financial Instruments carried at amortised costs
(% in Lakhs)
| For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Investments 8,050.73 10,254.98
Trade Receivables 106.14 225.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,108.77 6,430.94
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,069.66 8,221.55
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Trade Payables 141.58 110.50
Other Financial Liahilities 378.21 401.62
TOTAL 24,855.10 25,645.20




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G01169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note No. 43 (i) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(% in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

(A) Claims against Company not acknowledeged as Debts -
(B) Bank Guarantees provided 2,34 2,34
(C) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

(i) On Capital / Revenue Account (net of advances) and not provided for
(D) Export obligations under EPCG Licenses

(E) Contingent Liability towars Income Tax/Gst is as under -

Note No. 43 (ia) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS INCOME TAX

DL IRPL
Assessment Year R in Lakhs X in Lakhs
2012 -13 63.02 -
2013-14 49.07 -
2014 -15 98.73 -
2015-16 79.85 -
2016 - 17 24.16 -
2017 -18 58.60 -
2018 -19 73.53 80.53
2019 - 20 1.34 50.59
2020 - 21 82.92 -
2021-22 232.61 -
2022 -23 168.15 59.82

In IIDL, For A.Y. 12-13, 13-14, 14-15 and 16-17, appeal has been filed with Income tax appelate Tribunal. For A.Y. 15-16 and 17-18, the
cases are pending before CIT Appeals. For rest of the cases, rectification under sectlon 154 has been filed with Income Tax Deptt. In IRPL,
For A.Y. 18-19, 19-20 and 22-23, rectification has filed with Deptt.

Note No. 43 (ib) - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES TOWARDS GST

1IDL IRPL
Assessment Year / State X in Lakhs R in Lakhs
2017 - 18 / Delhi 31.08 -
2017-18 / U.P. 6.81 -

For both the above cases, appeal has been filed with GST Deptt.

Note No. 43 (i}
Against Sonepat Land Regional Provident Fund Commissioner - Il has ordered for the recovery of those defaulted by the earlier company,

i.e. Haryana Sheet Glass Limited {HSGL). A Writ Petition has been filed by the company before High Court of Punjab and Haryana at
Chandigrah against the said order. The Court was of prima facie opinion that proper procedures has not been followed in assessing the
liability. Accordingly, the impugned order has been quashed giving liberty to PF department to decide afresh after following due
procedure. The matter is Sub-judice.

Note No. 43 {iii)
The Company has received a notice from AIG Stamp Ghaziabad, for short payment of stamp duty amounting to Rs. 150.02 Lakhs. The

Honable high court has granted stay in favour of the company & the case is pending for the further hearing.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0OI1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 43 (iv)

An award dated 25.01.2018 was passed by the Arbitral Tribunal in the arbitration proceedings between M/s Subir Engineering Work(s) Pvt
Ltd. vs. IIDL directing IDL to pay claimant Rs.768.00 lakhs with interest @ 6% from 27.10.2016 against the total claim of Rs.2118 lakhs
claimed by the Claimant. {The Award includes VAT amount of Rs.309.00 lakhs and security deposit of Rs.272.00 lakhs). [IDL has filed a
petition u/s 34 of The Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before Hon’ble Delhi High Court against this award. Further, an amount of Rs.
400.00 lakhs has been deposited in the court as per the direction of Honable High Court. The matter is Sub-judice before DHC.

Note No. 43 (v)
The Company is contesting several matters pertaining to its project 21st Milestone Residency at Ghaziabad before Real Estate Regulatory

Authority/Real Estate Appellate Tribunal. In two of the matters i.e. Dwarikesh Sugar Industries Limited and Amit Kumar Shrivastava, an
attachment order was passed by the RERA authority against which the company has filed an appeal before REAT. Wherein as per the
direction of the tribunal, the company has deposited an amount of Rs. 19.51 Lakhs.

Note No. 43 (vi)
The Arbitrator passed an award on 21.02.2022 observing that the Claimant has been found entitled to a total sum of Rs. 442.47 Lakhs as

against sum of Rs. 200.61 Lakhs held recoverable by IIDL from SBTL under its Counter Claim with respect to amount to be recovered from
M/s SBTL from its retention money for work done by IIDL and Rs. 100 Lakhs towards liquidated damages recoverable under the Counter
Claim of lIDL. Setting off the said amount against the amount found payable to SBTL, SBTL shall be entitled to a sum of Rs, 141.87 Lakhs
only.

Accordingly, an award of Rs. 141.87 Lakhs in favour of SBTL in full and final settlement of all the disputes and the claims and the counter
claims arising from the disputes along with interest on the amount awarded in the favor of SBTL @ 9% p.a from 5.08.2019 till the date the
awarded amount is paid, passed by the Arbitrator. Further, SBTL shall also be entitled to proportionate costs of arbitration proceedings @
Rs. 15 Lakhs. The same paid to SBTL on 26-07-2022. The matter is Subjudice before DHC.

Note No. 44 - Disclosure as per IndAS - 11 Constructlon Contracts

(i) 1IDL has constructed a campus for MDI Gurgaon at Jangipur, District - Murshidabad, West Bengal. The financials relating to the contract
are as under:

PARTICULARS (X In Lakhs)

Contract
Contract revenue recognized during the year -
Contract expenses recognized during the year -
Recognized Profits <
Total Contract Costs (approx.) -
Amount recoverable from MDI 84.14

-Cost-plus Contract Method has been used to determine the Contract revenue recognized in the period.
-The stage of completion has been determined on the basis of Work Completion Certificate obtained from engineer / architect.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

as at 31st March 2024

NOTE NO. 45 - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

(Rs. in Lacs)
Quantitative Information in respect of Inventories
Description Purchases | Sales
CURRENT YEAR
Units Units
(Locations) amoun: {Locations) Amount

Land & Building - - . 53.55
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - - -
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores 52.67 - 177.14

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building - - - 169.60
Machinery & Equipment - < - E:
Additional Cost incurred on
Existing Properties - - -
Raw Material Consumables
and Stores - 50.99 - 215.12

Opening Stock Closing Stock
CURRENT YEAR
Un!ts Amount Un!ts Amount
{Locations) (Locations)

Land & Building - 5,795.13 - 6,937.13
Machinery & Equipment - - - -
Work-in-Progresss - 1,321.23 - -
Consumables and Stores - 22.86 - 19.26

PREVIOUS YEAR
Land & Building 5,795.13 - 5,795.13
Machinery & Equipment . -
Work-in-Progresss - 1,549.59 - 1,321.23
Consumables and Stores . - 35.94 - 22.86

Note:

1. Land and Buildings include units of different areas having varied description for its types / stage of construction / development, for
which it is not practical to make it individually descriptive for quantitative disclosure.
2. Consumables & Stores include various F&B, House Keeping, Diesel and Engineering related stores for which it is not practical to make

it individually descriptive for quantitative disclosure.
3. Work in progress is classified/ included in Land and building as there is no WIP in the company.




IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 46 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Note No. 46 (i) - Defined benefit plans
Brief Description: A general description of the type of Employee Benefits Plans is as follows:

1. Earned Leave (EL) Benefit

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 33 days per year

Maximum Accumulation - 300 days

Encashment while in service - 100% of earned leave balance, subject to maximum 90 days per year

Encashment on retirement - Maximum upto 300 days or actual accumulation, whichever is less, subject to 30 days balance in the account of

the employee

2. Gratuity

Salary - Last drawn qualifying salary

Accrual - 15 days salary for each completed year of service
Vesting Period - 5 years of service

Limit - Maximum of INR 20,00,000

Note No. 46 (ii) - The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows -
Assumptions as at March 31, 2024

S. No. Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
IIDL - Corporate office
Gratuity
1. Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
2. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs NA NA
4. Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
Leave Encashment
5. Discount rate 7.10% 7.43%
6. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
7. Annual increase in costs NA NA
8. Annual increase in salary 10.00% 10.00%
1IDL Suites - A unit of IIDL
Gratuity
1. Discount rate 7.23% 7.38%
2. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
3. Annual increase in costs NA NA
4. Annual increase in salary 8.00% 8.00%
Leave Encashment
5. Discount rate 7.23% 7.38%
6. Expected return on plan assets NA NA
% Annual increase in costs NA NA
8. Annual increase in salary 8.00% 8.00%

Note No. 46 (iii) - The discount rate is based upon the market yield available on Government bonds at the Accounting date with a term that
matches. The salary growth takes account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor on long term basis. Expected rate of
return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for return over the entire life of the related obligation.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 47 - Disclosure u/s 22 of MSMED Act, 2006

i. The company has requested information from all its vendors regarding their status of registration in accordance with the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("The Act"). Out of the same, vendors who did not send any confirmation have been taken to

be non MSME vendors. Disclosure required under Section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006 is as under -

as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid as at year

end

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the Act, beyond the
appointed day during the year

Interest paid other than under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers registered under
the Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid under Section 16 of the Act to suppliers registered under the Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 2006
for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the Act and remaining unpaid 0.40 487

Note No. 48 - IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

As certified by the management of the company, non financial assets of the company have not been impaired during the year and there is
no indication of a potential impairment loss, therefore the need to make an estimation of recoverable amount does not arise.

Note No. 49 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Ind AS 40)
(i) Amout recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss for Investment Properties

(X In Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023
Rental Income 272.85 31.79
Maintenance & Other Reimbursements received 29.96 26.14
Direct operating expenses from property generating Rental Income (includin
t operating exp property g 8 ( g (29.96) (7.16)
Repair & Maintenance)
Profit from Investment Property before depreciation 272.85 50.76
Depreciation 7.16 (52.08)
Profit from Investment Properties 280.01 (1.32)

The rental income of Rs. 31.79 Lakhs in F.Y. 2022-23 was from various properties and not specific to the Investment Property at Vasant

Vihar, which was not leased during the Year 2022-23.

(ii) Leasing Arrangements

Flat at Vasant Vihar was not leased,

For Mumbai Property - Future minimum lease rentals receivable under long-term operating leases of Investment Property is Rs. 2146.01

Lakh as compared to Rs. 2418.86 Lakh in previous year.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st March 2024

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Within one year 283.08 272.85
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 1,471.86 1,454.13
Later than 5 years 391.06 691.88

(iii) Fair Value

(X in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Flat at Vasant Vihar, Delhi* - 947.70
Property at Mumbai 4,774.70 4,774.70
TOTAL 4,774.70 5,722.40

* Above property was sold during the Financial year 2023-24.

Note No.49 A
Inventory includes lease hold rights of Financial City Bengaluru property amounting to Rs. 1177.24 lakhs for 4.37 acres of land, lease period

for 2.37 acres of land was expired on 02.11.2021 and for other 2 acres of land, lease period was expired on 12.10.2022, however the same
is extendable under clause no. 23 of the Lease cum Sale agreement entered between IIDL and KIADB. The request letter for renewal of
lease period of 50 acres land has been submitted with KIADB and renewal of the same is under process till the finalization of books of

accounts.

Note No. 50 - ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE UNDER PARA 53 OF IndAS 116 - LEASES
i. Additional disclosures required under Para 53 of Ind AS 116 are as under -

(X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2024 March 2023

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset - 3.69
Interest expense on lease liabilities - 0.56
Income from subleasing right-of-use assets - 0.91
Total cash outflow for leases - 4.25
Additions to right-of-use assets " s
Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of reporting period - 1.02

ii. Right of use assets accounted is for land received from Karnataka Industrial Development Board measuring a total of 50 acres, out of
which, 38.63 acres has been further sub-leased on sub-lease cum sale basis to various financial institutions. Further, an area of 7 acres has
been reserved as area for common facilities development. The company still holds land measuring 4.37 acres as inventories on lease cum

sale basis.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 51

As per company policy, investment held in Jangipur Bengal Mega Foodpark Limited was revalued during 2023-24. This has resulted in
impairment of fair value from INR 7.70 per share to INR 5.30 per share leading to net loss on fair value changes of Rs, 204.10 Lakhs.

Note No. 51 A - DUES TO SMALL SCALE INDUSTRIAL UNDERTAKINGS
There are no dues payable to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings as defined under Industries (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951 as at

the period end.

Note No. 52 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Amount
Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)
Opening Balance (962.50)
Net Additions (50.19)
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (1,012.69)

Note No. 53 - CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE u/s 135 OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(X in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
Partlculars
March 2024 March 2023
Gross Amount required to be spent by the company 24.86 24.73

Amount spent by the company during the year on -
a. Construction / acquisition of assets -
b. towards PM Care Fund 9.99
c. On other purposes - Transferred to IFCl Social Foundation* .

* Made provision for balance funds i.e. Rs. 14.87 Lakh for CSR.
*Contribution made to IFCI Social Foundation falls under the definition of contribution to a related party (trust controlled by the parent

company) in relation to CSR Expenditure as per Ind AS 24,

Note No. 54
Additional dislcosure persuant to Part |Il of Schedule Il of The Companies Act, 2013 is as under -
(% in Lakhs)
Net Assets i.e. Total Assets minus Total Liabllities Share in Profit or Loss
Name of the Entity %age of Consolidated %age of Consolidated
Amount Amount

Net Assets Profit or Loss
indian Subsidiary
[IDL Realtors Private Limited 1.99% 1,018.01 11.95% 136.00

Note No. 55 - CHANGE IN USEFUL LIFE OF FIXED ASSETS
As per CAG recommendation, it is to be disclosed that during the Financial Year 2019-20, useful life of Furnlture & Fixture at [IDL Suites

(Hospitality Division) has been changed from 10 years to 8 years resulting in depreciation rate impacting the profit of the company by
around Rs. 3.22 Crores.
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IFCI INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
CIN : U45400DL2007G0I1169232
Regd. Office - 7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110 019 (IN)

CONSOLIDATED NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March 2024

Note No. 56 - Balance Confirmation
The balances of Trade Receivables and Trade Payable are subject to confirmation.

Note No. 57
Previous period figures have been regrouped / rearranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to the current

year’s presentation.

Note No. 58

We are using an accouting software which is operated by a third party software service provider for maintaining books of accounts. There
is a feature of Maker checker mechanism. User wise edit log and audit trail is available in the software.

Note No. 59
The notes referred to above from an integral part of the Financial Statements. As per schedule 1ll, Annexure 1 (Ratio), Annexure 2 (Debtors

Ageing), Annexure 3 (Creditors Ageing) & Annexure 4 (CSR Disclosure) are integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For VPGS & Co. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 507971C
Sd/- Sdy/-
(Amrendra Kumar) {(Sachikanta Mishra)
Sd/- DIN: 10472659 DIN : 02755068
CA Vivek Raheja MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
PARTNER
M. No. 094781
Sd/- Sd/-
(Nidhi Agarwal) (Pooja Vanjani)
Date : 27th April 2024 M. No: 413317 M. No. : 22668
Place : New Delhi CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
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Annexure-4

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Total CSR obligation for the financial year is Rs. 24,86,311/-. IFCI Infrastructure
Development Ltd spent Rs. 9,99,111/- towards PM Cares Funds on 30-03-2024 and made a
provision of Rs. 14,87,200/- towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year —

Amount
Unspent
Provision made for unspent amount

Total Amount Spent for
theFinancial Year-
2023-24

Amount Rs.
Rs. 14,87,200/-

Date of Transfer
31-03-2024

Rs. 9,99,111/-

IFCI Infrastructure Development Ltd spent/transfer Rs. 24,72,892/- during the financial
year 2022-23 to IFCl Social Foundation towards CSR initiatives.

Details of CSR spent or unspent during the financial year —

Amount

Total Amount Spent for Unspent
theFinancial Year- Balance available to Unspent CSR Account as per Section
2022-23 135(6)

Amount Rs.

Date of Transfer

Rs. 94,098/-

Rs. 23,78,794/-

28-04-2023




